MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AUGUST 11, 2020
AGENDA

1. Call to order and welcome by Chairman Tate

2. Announcements

3. Moment of Silence

4. Pledge of Allegiance

5. Public Hearing(s) -~ None

6. Public Comment Period (via telephone)

7. Additions to agenda

8. Adjustments to and approval of the agenda

9. Reports/Presentations

(A) Macon County Homeless Task Force Proposal —

President, Macon New Beginnings

(B) Update on county’s response to COVID-19
(1) Kathy McGaha - Public Health
(2) Warren Cabe — Emergency Management
(3) Sheriff Robert Holland — Law Enforcement
(4) Derek Roland -- Administration

10.01d Business

11.New Business
(A) Consideration of proposed fee plan for Fiscal Year 2020-21 —
Public Health Director Kathy McGaha

(B) Transit fare structure change — Transit Director Kim Angel
(C) Resolution regarding surplus dental equipment - County
Attorney Chester Jones
(D) Discussion/consideration of Request For Proposals (RFP) for
Macon County High-Speed Internet Access Service Expansion
Project — Mr. Jones

Bob Bourke,

MACON COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX
PHONE 828-349-2000

5 WEST MAIN STREET

FRANKLIN, NORTH CAROLINA 28734
FAX: 828-349-2400



(E) Consideration of revised Emergency Management Ordinance —
Mr. Jones and Emergency Services Director Warren Cabe

(F) Consideration of renewal of Non-Emergency Transportation
Services Contract - Mr. Roland

{(G)Request for additional services for IT scope changes for Macon
Middle School renovation — Mr. Roland

12.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12
All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the May 26, 2020 continued session, the June 2,
2020 continued session and the June 9 regular meeting

(B} Budget Amendments #34-47

(C) Tax Releases in the amount of $1,558.98 for July 2020

(D)Monthly ad valorem tax collection report — no action necessary

13.Appointments

14.Closed session as allowed under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) for the
purpose of preserving the attorney/client privilege.

15.Adjourn /Recess



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY — REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS

MEETING DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020

9A. Bob Bourke, the president of Macon New Beginnings, will present a
proposal for a homelessness task force. A copy of background information
supplied by Mr. Bourke is attached. In an email to county officials earlier

this year, he briefly outlined a course of action, as follows: Therefore, might I
suggest that a homelessness task force be established. Such a team would consist of and be
supported by the town, county, businesses, non-government agencies and concerned citizens.
This team would be charged with cataloguing the current resources available to the homeless,
identifying the needs of the homeless, developing a gap analysis, and recommending action steps.

9B. The board will receive its monthly update on the county’s COVID-19

response/status from the following individuals:
Kathy McGaha regarding Public Health
e Warren Cabe regarding Emergency Management
Sherift Robert Holland regarding law enforcement issues
Derek Roland regarding overall county administration




HELP!NG THE HOMELESS

-I- MACON NEW IEGINNINGS

Macon New Beginnings, Inc.
131 Franklin Plaza Dr., Box 228, Franklin, NC 28734
(828)202-3103 www.maconnewbeginnings.org

Macon County Homelessness
Proposed Homelessness Task Force Background Information

Macon New Beginnings, Inc. (MNB) is a 501 ¢ (3) non-profit helping the homeless in Macon County,
NC. Macon New Beginnings, an all volunteer organization, was incorporated in NC in 2015. Since then
we have worked with Macon county and Franklin departments, non-government agencies, businesses,
concerned citizens, etc. in helping the homeless. We have also worked with homeless organizations
around NC and the US. Macon New Beginnings has also harvested homeless practices and procedures
from European and Japanese homeless agencies.

US Department of Urban Development (HUD) Homeless Definition:
* People who are living in a place not meant for human habitation, in emergency shelter, in
transitional housing, or are exiting an institution where they temporarily resided.
* People who are losing their primary nighttime residence, which may include a motel or hotel or a
doubled up situation, within 14 days and lack resources or support networks to remain in housing.

e Families with children or unaccompanied youth who are unstably housed and likely to continue in
that state.

¢ People who are fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, have no other residence, and lack
the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing.

1. Many in our community have asked: are there are homeless in Macon county?

On 9/18/19 Franklin Police Chief Adams convened a meeting that included town departments, county
departments and various agencies to discuss the homeless.

On 3/21/19 the NC Commerce department convened a meeting with the Macon County Parole and
probation office, local businesses and various agencies to discuss those individuals being released
from the criminal justice system and re-entering the community.

On 3/3/19 School Superintendent Baldwin convened a meeting with several faith-based organizations
and various agencies to discuss reaching out to homeless students & parents.

Ask Town Department heads (Police, Parks, Legal, etc.) how much time and effort their staff spend
serving homeless people.

Ask Macon County Department heads (Sheriff, Emergency Services, DSS, Health and Human Services,
Schools, Parks & Recreation, etc. how much time and effort their staff spend serving homeless people.

Ask Non-government agencies and businesses (Angel Medical, Appalachian Services, Meridian, Carenet,
REACH, VAYA, MPP, No Wrong Door, Full Circle, Macon New Beginnings, etc. how much time and

effort their staff spend serving homeless people.

2. Who are the homeless?




'MACON NEW IEGINNIN.GS

HELPING THE HOMELESS

Macon New Beginnings, Inc.
131 Franklin Plaza Dr., Box 228, Franklin, NC 28734
(828) 202-3103 www.maconnewbeginnings.org

They are men, women, children, veterans, behaviorally challenged, substance users, and “people down on
their luck”. In short anyone.

3. How many homeless are there?

One way to get an idea of the magnitude is to count. So (HUD) asks communities to count homeless
people on the last Wednesday in January of every year (point in time - PIT). Many believe the count is
below the actual number because some don’t want to be counted, couch surfing is not included, it is
difficult to count in rural or dangerous areas, impact of weather, etc. With that in mind:

2017 70
2018 65
2019 91
2020 Unofficial partial information - MNB: 60 & Full Circle: 15

A back of the napkin reasonableness test may be useful.

2019 US Totals:
567,715 Homeless population
329,450,000  US population
X 100
=0.17%

Applied to Macon County population of 34,624 =59 So the PIT numbers above
would appear reasonable.

Some numbers from MNB: (MNB emphasizes permanent housing rather than temporary shelter)

2019 2018 2017
Assistance Phone calls 1,634 1,649 1,167
People Served 229 368 230
Emergency shelter 24 46 35
Children 104 162 94

Many hotels and landlords introduced a “black list” which has impacted the number of clients we’ve been
able to help.

Since we began we have expended over $188,000 helping 1,123 people. This does not include the value
of time by our all-volunteer organization estimated at over $173,000.

4. Where are the homeless that “we are dealing with”?

During the day you may see some in public asking for help, they may be a coworker, or the person
serving your dinner. But at night the homeless seek a safe place where they are less likely to be disturbed.
In Macon County this shelter may include vehicles, river banks, parks, wooded areas, abandoned
buildings, storage units, and the list goes on.



+ MACON NEW BEGINNINGS

"HELPING THE HOMELESS

Macon New Beginnings, Inc.
131 Franklin Plaza Dr., Box 228, Franklin, NC 28734
(828) 202-3103 www.maconnewbeginnings.org

5. Is homelessness increasing?

Here is some information from a single issue of the Franklin Press that could impact homelessness along
with some observations.

“Macon Home Sales coming off strong 2019” Will housing become more affordable?

“Rising N.C. farm bankruptcies could signal broader rural crisis” Will more people have a steady
income?

“Five facing heroin trafficking charges” Is substance use decreasing?

Take a look at the crime report and arrest section of the paper, is it getting smaller?

How about some other realities: Does the Sheriff want to decrease the size of the jail? Do home
ownership or rental costs ever decrease? Is Macon County’s average age decreasing? Are people saving

more?

These items point out that homelessness is not likely to go away and frankly will probably increase.



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY - NEW BUSINESS

MEETING DATE: AUGUST 11,2020

11A. Macon County Public Health Director Kathy McGaha will present the
department’s fee schedule for Fiscal Year 2020-21 for the board’s
consideration, and a copy of those fees is included in the packet. Items that
are requested to be increased are highlighted. The Macon County Board of
Health voted to approve the updated schedule at its meeting on July 28,
2020.

11B. Macon County Transit Director Kim Angel will present a revised
transit fare structure for the board’s consideration, and her memo to the
board outlining those changes is included in the packet. She is anticipating
using the revised fare structure for the remainder of the current fiscal year.

11C. Mr. Jones is preparing a resolution regarding surplus dental equipment
from the former Adult Dental Clinic at Macon County Public Health. That
resolution, which will declare the property as surplus and direct it to be sold,
will be available at Tuesday’s meeting.

I1D.  Mr. Jones can also provide information on the Request For Proposal
(RFP) for the “Macon County High-Speed Internet Access Service
Expansion Project,” a draft copy of which is included in the packet. The
scope of the project consists of expanding high-speed Internet access/service
within the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald Mill, Otto,
Norton, Mulberry, Tessentee and Scaly Mountain over a three-year period.

I1E. Along with Emergency Services Director Warren Cabe, Mr. Jones
will present a revised version of the county’s Emergency Management
Ordinance for the board’s consideration, a copy of which is included in the
packet.




11F.  Mr. Roland was anticipating receiving a document to renew a non-
emergency transportation services contract, but as of this writing on
Thursday afternoon (August 6), that contract had not been delivered. Mr.
Roland will update the board on this matter at the meeting.

11G. Mr, Roland will also present a request from SGA/NarmourWright
seeking additional design service fees related to an additional scope of work
for Information Technology (IT) items as part of the renovations to Macon
Middle School. A copy of that request is included in the packet.




00°ZET 0t J2A0 J213WeIp PasIdXa 'S39| 40 ‘SWUe ‘yunil 90vTT
‘(81aymas|a paisi| ssajun) Sel upys 3dadx3 “suidiew Suipn|oul UoISa] USIUBQ ‘UOISIIX]
00't6T w2 Q' 03 WD T'¢ Jalawelp pasioxa 's8a) Jo ‘Sswue yunuy F0ant
‘(242ymas|a paisi| ssajun) Be1 upys 1deax3 ‘suiBiew Suipnjour uoisa) ugiuag ‘UoISIIX]
00°9LT W) 0°E 03 W2 T°7 J213WeEIp PasidxXo S8a| 40 ‘swie Juniy Ielans
‘(a4aymas|a paisi| ssajun) ey upys 1daax3 “suiBsew Suipn|our uoisa| uSiuag ‘UoISIDX]
00°ZstT W) 0 03 WD T'T J319Welp pasioxs s33| 10 ‘Swie Huniy 0rTT
‘(@12ymas|a pals)| ssajun) Jey uys 1dadax3 suiSiew Suipnjoul UoIS3| USIUBY ‘UOISIOXT
00°'SET W 0'T 03 W2 970 J21awelp pasidxs 's3a) 4o ‘swie yuna 10VIT
‘(s1ymas|a paisi| ssajun) Sel uiys 1daox3 ‘suiBiew Buipnpoul uoisa| uSiuag ‘UoIsIIXg
00°STT $S3| 1O WI §°( J313WeRIP PAsIOXa [S53| O ‘SWie Huniy 00FTT
‘(243ymas|a paist| ssajun) Sey unys 1daox3 ‘suiSiew Suipnioul uoisa| uSiuag ‘UoIsSIIXg
00'8¢ SUOIS3| 0T [2UOINIPPE YdBd SFe1 UIS JO |eAOWRY 10211
000 SuoIs3| GT 01 dn ‘s5e1 uys Jo [eAOWRY 00ZTT
00's Co_umum._QLmuc_ YlIM MO} pO0O|( J8|NJ0 JO JUsWaINsea\ Adg 40002
000 2|0zepluoiiaiy 0€00S
00°€bsS pieaipay - Suises|al suowloy - gn| euaAN|an 8660
00°006 BuIsea|a4 2uowloy - M| euaa|AY Y8660
00'TZ 994 21S uoneuwduQ Ajeiyohsd 3131 ¥10ED
00°'v9E uoueldxaN|an LOELT
00°00S uoue|dxan LOELT
00°82S (euauin) Bw gg ‘waisAs anndadesiuod aulainesiul Suisea|al-|aJ153810uoA] ZOELr
00'9LE PIRJIPAIA - BWed) |lews an| ejAxs|an TOELT
00°008 aweyy [lews anl ejAys TOELT
00°0SZ V08EL piedesed ‘@a1nep anzdasesjuod Jaddod aulaineiul(an 00&Lr
00°052 v0gEL pieSeieq ‘@21aap aAndadsesuod Jaddod auusinelju| 00ELl
00°TIE pIEJIDSIN - AN BUSIIN| AN 86241
00°0SE (zogLr saoedal) eualIN 86TLI
00°05 enan LecLr
00°0S8 sndl02 3UAIN Y] JO BLWOUIDIEIOUIPE PAJUBADE JO JUWIEALL Ay} 10y AjUO Pasn 4-£T 06¥Er
00°PET Bwpee ‘ssop ||y (8)4y) ungo|9 sunwwi (a) oyy 0642f
00058 d/T Ui 9zTLIl
00°1TC uonalul d/T STLIC
00°0T aleydsoyd wnipos auoseylawexaq ‘uodalul 00TTr
0002 (nun 1ad p£°) DI ST ‘B1EI8IY duollsadolidAxoipaly ‘uondaluy) 080Tr
nun/osg auozeuys) 96901
nun/sg uljidig T950r
000 Xewouylizy EE)
00°0 J1IA0pAdY /aunpAaAxoq cETOr
s334 MaN S804 Jualng r_nlm
uonduasaqg = apo)
pasodoud m

a|npayos 994 Yj|eaH 21jgnd Aunos uoaep




00’002 L3 §°Z 01 W3 175 [{199) pUB spuey Juipnjaul) ssueaquisw ¥T0CT
SNa2INW Jo/pue ‘sdi) ‘asou ‘spl[aAa "sied ‘aoey 10 Spunom Jenipadns o Jiedal ajduwig

00°TLT Wd 0 03 WY §'7 (1994 pue spuey Suipnjoul) sauelguIaw £10¢T
snoonuws Jo/pue ‘sdif ‘950U “Sp1IaAS ‘s1ea ‘adey Jo spunom [eLIAdNS Jo iedad Spdwig

00°€ST 553 40 WD §°'7 {189} pue spuey Fuipnpul) ssuelquiay 11021
SMOJNW 10/puUe ‘sdi| ‘950U "SPIIAa ‘slea ‘adey Jo spunom |epipadns o sedal ajdwig

00°1EE W §"Q€ 4240 {1994 pue spuey SuIpn|aun) sallwaNxs Jo/pue £002T
“unJy ‘eneuad [eulaixa ‘aefixe “oau ‘'djeds Jo spunom jeradns jo nedal aduig

00'862 WD §" g€ 01 W T°07 (393} pue spuey Surpniaul) sa1wanxs Jo/pue 20021
“unuy ‘ereHUSE |BUIaIxXD ‘Be||IXe 433U ‘d|eDS Jo spunom |eiedns Jo Jiedas ajdwig

00'8Z¢ W "0z 0} W 92T (3994 pue spuey Buipn|oul) sSWSIXe Jo/pue SOOZT
“unay ‘eljeluad |eulalxs Be||Ixe “§Iau ‘diess Jo spunom |ei3ipladns Jo Jedaa siduig

00°v8T W3 §°ZT O} i3 9°2 {1884 pue spuey SuIpn|3Ul) SBILIWAIXD J0/pue +30TT
“Junuy ‘2)(2)uad |eulalxe ‘Se|IXE “Dau ‘d|eds Jo spunom jedsdns o sedat ajdus

00651 Wd G 03 Wd §°7 (1233 pue spuey Fulpn(aul) saniwal1xs Jo/pue c00ZT
funiy ‘erjelus |eussixa ‘se|xe 23U ‘d|eds Jo spunom |eRladns jo aiedad ajdung

00°LPT 553 40 W2 §°2 {1234 pue spuey Buipn|aul) S3UWDX3 10/pue 100ZT
junil ‘BIfeIUSE [EUI3IKD ‘Be||IXe Yaou ‘dieds Jo spunom |eplladns 1o aiedal ajdung

00°EEE W3 0 J8A0 1312 WEIP PISIOXS [AueRIqWBW SNOINW ‘sdi] 'as0U ‘SpIfaAs ‘Siea ‘ade; g ann
‘(21aymas|a paasy ssajun) Ze unjs 3daox3 "suiSiew Buipnjau uoisa| USIUAG ‘UISIING

00'2L2 WI §°F 03 W3 T°E J91AWEIP PISIING [SuURIqWBW SNOINLW ‘sdI ‘Bs0U ‘sp1aAa ‘sied ‘aaey PryIT
‘{24aymas|e palsy| ssajun) Fel upys 1da0x3 suidiew Suipnou uoisa| uSiuag ‘uoisIdK]

00°6TC WD 0°E 03 I 177 J2laWeIp PasIIXd [JuRIqUISLL Snodnw “sd)| ‘asou ‘sprjada ‘siea ‘aoey EVrIT
‘(a19ymasis paisl| ssajun) Sel unys 1deox3 sulSlew Sulpnppul UOISI| USILBE ‘WOISIAX]

00rLT W3 0°Z 01 WD T'T JS13WIeIP PASIZXa [dueIqaW snoanw sdi| ‘asou ‘spljaAs ‘siea ‘adey rriT
‘(a4aymas|a paisy ssajun) 3e3 ups 1d3ox3 "suisiew Bulpnpu) woisa| uSiuag ‘UoIsIXg

00°LST W3 Q'T 03 Wd g7 J91dWe|p pasiaxa ‘pueiquiaw snoanw ‘sdif ‘@sau ‘spijaia ‘siea ‘adey TrrTT
{a1aymas|a palsi| ssajun) Sel upjs 1d3ax3 surBsew Suipnpul uoiss| uBIuag UOISIIX]

00'TET 5§59| 10 W2 §°0 J21BWERID PISIIKS IBULIqLISW Snodnw ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘Sp1jaAa ‘sued ‘aaey OrP1T
‘(S42ymas)a pais)| ssejun) Bel upys 3daax3 “suISiew Suipnppul uoisa) udluag UoISIoNg

00°162 WD ' 1240 J2J2WEIP PasIaxa ‘el|eluas 192y ‘spuey “yoau ‘diess 9erit
‘(203ymasts paasy ssajun) Be3 unys 3daox3 “suiSiew Buipn|oul uotss| uBluag 'uoisiaxg

00°81e w2 Q' 03 Wa T'E Ja19WeIp pasioxa ‘eljeluaz ‘198 ‘spuey 3au ‘djeas Perit
‘(@13ymas|a pa1sl) ssaun) Bey upys 3daox3 “suidiew Buipniaul uosa| UIUAG “UGISIIX]

007261 W3 0 01 WD T'Z J812wWwelp pasioxs ‘eljeluas 193y ‘spuey ‘“yau ‘dieds EZPTT
‘{21aymas|a pais)| ssajun) Fe3 upjs 3daox3 "suiSiew Buipnjsul uoisa) UgURG ‘UOISIDXY

00'8ST w3 0 0} W2 T°T J2ISWeIp pasioxe eleliual ‘1aay ‘spuey au ‘diexs ZrTt
‘{a1aymas|e pa1s)| 552)un) Jey upys 1deax3 suiBiew Suipn)aul uoisa| uSiuaq ‘UOISIDXT

00'ZFT W ' 01 970 Ja1tueIp pasioxa [e||epuad 1234 ‘spuey Hoau ‘dies 1ZrTT
‘{alaymas|e pals)| ssajun) el upys 1daax3 suiBiew Suipnjaul uoisa| usiuag ‘UoISIIX]

00°0TT SS3| 0 W §70 Ja3aLieIp pasiXe (eleluad 183y 'spuey Hosu ‘'djeds 0ZeTT

‘{a1aymasie pals)| ssajun) Sey upys 1deoxg suiBiew SuIpnaul UOIST| USIUIY ‘UDISIIX]




00°9) aredipaiy (3U0ZN|4) JUPIEA SNIIA N4 8E0ED
0091 alenpaly (UMIANIJ) SUIDDBA SNIIA N|4 LEQZD
00°9¢ SYUOW 9g-0 Jusjeaupenb auIDoBA BZUSN L[ ge02Zo
00w {auedipay) g dop - 994 uoeasILIWPY 0L009
00'bL (21E01PBIN) 10YS BIUOWINSBU - 894 UONEISILILPY 60009
0oL {3IEDIP3Y) JOUS Ni- - 984 UOLENSILILDY 80009
009 Aed Jushed -1saL AL d0gsos
00'9 1881 g1 08598
0098 Xem Jes pajoedwi saoway 0LZ69
00°LZ1 aued AranljgQ Jeyy 0EPBS
00°00€°L SYSIA 2I0W JO £ ISUSIA |BJRUSId o9Zr6s
0070001 SlSIA 9 0] ¥ S)ISIA |BlEuald SC¥BS
00'Z9 1591 SSanG-UCN [elo4 S20B5
00°691 anl Jo renowasy LOEBS
00°ZEL SIASP SUIBINRIIU Has5U) 00E8G
00°60L {aunpacoud ejeredss) poylsw AUe “UONENIP |BDIAIED INOUNM (ASdOI) 00195
Buydwes jeaialaoopua jnoyim 1o yim (Asdoig) Buidwes |eujauicpug
D0°6ET sbenaino [eanssopuam eubiea Juasefpepaddn Bupnioul xinao syl 1o Adoosod|on 9GPLG
00°¢sZ XA 30 Asdoigim euiben jusoelpeuaddn Buipnppur xings jo Adoasodion G5¥/G
abejaing [e3IRsopUa
00692 10 x1u30 Jo Asdoigm eulBea Jusoelpeaddn Buipniou x_EmutoE E_ >moowon___uoo vEvLS
00°L6} euiBen Jusoelpeuaddn Buipnpul xiaed au) Jo Adossod|on 25¥46G
00°16 suonanysur ynm Bumy wbenydeiq 0LL1G
00°v6¢ x21dwo? - (3)uoisaT eana Aodseq 51596
o00'62T BAINA WO L L059S
00°£8§ AIoBansoAuD aasUDIXT - {5)UDISDT SIUBY UOIdRIISA] S90PS
00°822 [ea1way) Sjdulis - (s)uoisan Siuad Aoaisag 0505
006 suoIss| T ©1 dn Isuoisa) aanesayod 0TTLT
JBINIseA SNO3URIND JO ST} ups UBY]L JOYI0 SUO|sa| uBilusq 40 ‘{1uawanalng
1ex181ns ‘AseBansowaya YJsBansoAd ‘AsaBansoa1na)a “Aiadins Jase| ‘8a) uoianiisag
00°StT UOILIBSUIR] YUM [BACLUDS Uoug|dxan £861T
00°08 leAcwIR) uouR|dXan 786TT
00'59 UOIHasUY Uoue|dxa I86TT
00°8¥7T Supjoed yum fosusdsiyap punom [eianIadns 4O JUBWEdLL 12021
00202 84ns0J2 8|dwWIs {3USISIYPP pUnom |BI3(3dNs 4O JUIWIEL] 0zozt
00'9LY wd 0'pE Jano (3994 pue spuey Juipnjaul) sauelquIBW 81071
snoonwl ao/pue ‘sdi| ‘ssou ‘sprjaAs ‘siea ‘aey Jo spunom |eiziadns Jo Jedads Iduwig
00°t6E W3 Q'0g 03 W2 T'07 ‘(1994 pue spuey Fuipn|oul) sauelguaws L10CT
SNo3NW xo/pue ‘sd)| ‘asou ‘spipAa ‘siea ‘adej Jjo spunom |eriladns jo Jiedau Fdung
00°t0€ WD 0'0Z 01 W2 97T {3994 pue spuey Suipn|oul) ssuBIqUIW 910zt
SM03NW Jo/pue ‘sdi| ‘as0u ‘SpIiaAa ‘SJBD ‘934 JO Spunom |eiiadns 1o Jiedad 3duwg
00°05¢ W2 57T 01 W3 g7/ (1994 pue spuey Fuipn|aul) sauelgusw STOZT

SNoINW Jo/pue ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘spi[sAa ‘ssea ‘aaey 10 spunom [eiadns o Jiedat a|dwis




00°6¢ pL ¥1.06
00°9¢ Ndl €1206
00°92$ 00°912 (penboid) AN 01206
00°68% 00°SL JNN 20.06
00°8S snueja] ewayidig - 14 Z0L06
00°'SE dv.id 00.06
00°0gL (QiH/AdI-de L) - Ionuad 86906
00°SS (AdI-de1a) - Xuury 96906
00°901 audeA ploydAy 16906
00°ZZ3 00°ST 3sn JejNdSnEe.juI Jo} "Jap|0 pue abe Jo sieak
€ S[ENPIAIpUI 0] PaJ3JSIUIWPE USUM ‘SNUIA Jjds ‘JuajeAlpenb‘auiooeA SnIIA BZuanjuj 88906
00°ZT$ 00791 SN Je[nosNWENUI JO} ‘abe JO syjuow
GE-9 UAIP[IYD 0} PaISJSIUILLPE UAYM ‘SNUIA Jijds JuaeAIpENb aUIDOBA SNUIA BZUSNIU| £8906
00°€Z$ 00TZ 9sn Je|nasnLuesiul Joj ‘Jap|o pue abe Jo sieak ¢ S|eEnpIAIpul 0 palajsiuilLIpe
uaym ‘aaly aanensasald ‘snuia Jds ‘JuajeaupenbiaudoeA SnUIA BZusnju| 98906
00'Z$ 00°9} 2SN JB|NOSNLUBIIUI IO} ‘Obe JO SUJUOL GE-0 USIP|IUD O PaJajSIUILIPE
usym ‘aay) annensasald ‘snuia Jiids ‘JuajeAupenb auoBA SNIIA BZUSN|U| 58906
00°SLE Xuejoy 18906
0026 bajejoy 08906
00°'TEES 00°S0¢ SAIJUBASIH - BUIDIBA Salgey 9/906
00°9VES 00582 ainsodxd - aUIdoBA saigey /906
oo'ov ISIN N4 JusjeAlpenD 2,906
00°02¢ leunald 04906
00°65S 0097 (<8 g9) asoq ybiH suozn|4 29906
palddng a1e1s - 1siwin|4 09906
00°'LL (<9 sih g) Joys nid4 85906
00°LL (sujuow G¢-9) Jous ni4 L5906
00°6vZS 00°S0Z 2S0pP € 6 AdH 15906
00°2E1 (xuen1aD) AdHAZ JUSIBAIg AdH 05906
0006} (AdH) lIsepiesy 6¥906
00°6S 3INPayds 8sop ¥ L-ddd - PIIUS - qIH 8¥906
00°LE 9|Npayas asop £ dNO ddd - aH L¥906
00°LE Auo 121s00q - YNPY - gIH 9r906
00°LE 3NP3YIS 3S0P ¥ DOAH - PIIYD - qIH S¥906
00°9T1S 00°s8 SUIDDEBA XUUIM | 9£906
00°SE oujeIpad - v deH £E£906
00°LS unpy - v doH Z£906
00°091 (asop ¢ g dnoibosas usjoidod)| JueUIqUI0Dal) g |eao0d0buluspy 12906
00°83T$ 00°8ST (asop z ‘g dnoisbosas uigjoid JueuIquodal) g [e220206UIUSN 02906
00°0Z (pioxoyaurooea
uoljeuIgLUIoD Jo a|Buls) auinaea a)nol |10 1O [BSEURIUI [BUOIIPPE YoBg .06
00°0Z (p10x0}/8uUI0dEeA UOI}BUIGIOD
Jo 2|6UIS) QUIDDBA 2UO ‘2)JN0J [BIO JO [BSBURAUI AG UOHEISIUILIPE UOHEZIUNUIW| €Lv06
00V |BUOIHIPPY YIET-994 UOHRJSIUILPY SUIDJEA Z.¥06
00'v 934 UOHBJSIUILUPY SUIDIBA LL¥06
00°8T 2uedIpaN (pPayadsun) sUIRVBA SNUIA NI 6£020




00'9Z¢ sanuiw g xoudde swn sAyd-alanas ‘1d mau AO S0Z66
00°082 sanuIw G xoudde awn sAyd-xajdwod ‘id mau AO 0266
00°081L sanuiw Og xoldde awiy sAyd-siesspow ‘1d mau AQ £0Z66
00'vZL sa)nuiw Oz xosdde awyy sAyd-ajesspow ‘}d mau AO Z0Z66
ooes sajnuiw 0| "xoldde awy sAyd-souiw (3d) Juaned mau (AQ) ISIA SO L0Z66
00's 1sa| Buussiog Aunoy [ensiA €.166
00's 10]07 - 153 Buiusaidg Aundy [ensip CLLB6
00°'SL swuoy [ea1sAyd a19|dwod 1@ swuoy soueInsul se Yans spedal [epads 08066
000 20B) 0] @2k} ‘ucneanp] dnois L9686
000 908} 0} 32B} 'UDNEINPT [ENPIAIPU| 09686
000 Jun/uiw G| ‘uoneanp3 auoydae L 19686
00°ZZ ‘|lenpialpul ‘uouaAIalUl PUB Juswssasse-al ‘Adelay) uonnu jeaIpspy £08.6
00°S¥ ‘|ENPIAIPUI ‘UOIIUBAISIUI PUB JUSLISSSSE |eiiul ‘Adeiay) UuonuINu [BIIPSIA 20816

00°00T ue|d Juawiealy/uodal ay)

Suniedald pue ‘Juswssasse ayl Junaidialul/Suliods ‘elep ised JuizAjeue adey-01-93e)

-UOU pue ‘suoliepuaWWOaI pue sSulpuly SUISSNISIP pue SIUIWISSISSE BULIlSIUIWpE
(s)4oniBauea/(s)uelpiens Jo/pue Juaned yum ade-01-3dey Bl S, [eu0lssajold aled Hakig

Yijeay payijenb sayio Jo s,uedisAyd ayi jo sanuiw ST Yyaea ‘[euoissajold aled yieay

pauenb Jayjo Jo uedisiyd e AQ paJalsiulwpe ‘JUSWSSISSe UOIIEIIIIUIPI JoIABY 3G
00°02 uoioalu| anneadesay | 21896
009 JUBWSS3SSY YSIY YleaH pasndod-juslied JO UoneISIUIWPY 09196
00°0Z JuswWssasse-al ‘Ul G| Jad 'JUaLISSasSSY JoineYyag B Uleay 15196
00°L2 [BIHU] ‘UIW G| Jad JUSLWISSSSY JoinRyag § UlesH 05196
00°L jusWsSesSY [BlOinBYag/[EUONOWT Joug L2196
00k Buiuasiog eyuawdolaaag 0L196
00°0¢ Bunss} jeuonippe 9X3 0L0E6
00or Hoday pue uoneleidialul yum 533 000€6
00°€9 (usisuey] Joylo ‘|aAa] sniNwils 9|6uIs) palwi] ‘SUOISSILLD J11SN0JB0J0 PS}OAT 18626
008l AnawouedwA | £9526
00'6¢ i1s8] buneay 25526
00°S9TS 00°8¥} Xubulys 05206
00°59 unpy - g daH 9v.06
00°L¢ Jujelpad - g deH ¥¥.L06
00°962 audeA siileydsoul assueder 8EL06
00°0€2 (suraoeA saibuiys) xeaeisoz 9£.06
00°sZ1 BlJOBUSIN ¥EL06
00°8LL |ea2020BUILBIY €€L06
00°8TTS 00°€0T SuUJeA BlUOWNSUG 2£.06
00'SL (AdI-gdaH -delq) - xuelpad £Z.06
00°sClt BUIDOB/\ JBA34 MOJIBA L1206
00'L¥ dep. GLL06
00"9€T SUIDOEA E||90LIEBA 9LL06




00’001 tonm._ >n_ .Umm_._uoh Em_no._a - UQNENIEAS |BID 2AISUSIXD pUR pajlele] 09L04
00'69 Emﬁma P3YSIGQETSD IO MaU - UONJEN|RAS 1elo m>_wnwr_w._QEcU 05104
00'gt SJAC > 1d 'uonen|ea 2o S¥L0d
00'99 P&SNO0J Wajqoad - LOREN|EAS |80 POy 0¥10Q
00°8¢ UOIEN[BAR |£10 SIpOLIDd 0Z10a
AYINTA
00°L6 sonuIw g xdde ‘Buiasunod dnolb ‘audipawl saljusAsld ZLP66
00'52 {20zN7 peoe|doy) seorueg uswabeuey pue uoijeneag 1BUIO 66¥66
00'081 SINUIL ¢ [euolippe Buiuueid sied aoueApy 9666
0008} uiw 0g 151y Bujuue|d 21ed souBADY 16766
00'602 yBiyrseainies Juawabeuew aied [euonisuel] 96+66
007121 2je1apowW/sadAIas Juswabeuew aieo |BUOHISURI ] S6P66
[4]e o Uiuow g Ul suil O jeuolippe yoee “uawalbeuewl aied aAReIoqe|on) FEYER
00°S0T senUIW 09 JUswWabruew 3123 2ANEIOGE(ICI JulelydAsd Juanbasgng £6¥66
Q0'IET SalnuIll g ¥say EmEmmm:mE 2JED QAllROIgR|I0D o_bm_:uhma |eiu| Z6t66
00°9% [eusgar Buledaid g BueunwLLIoD LW 0g-g| JOPIAOL Buieal) ueynsuos 25966
009t Emwm._n_ m_.__m.n ucm_“ma NOoUPM 240w 1O s2NUILL G - JUBYINSUOD LSt66
00'6 SIUBLISSISSY |RUOIPPY 0Z¥66
00°t9 Uil g 19A0 2sNqQy 30UBISgnNS BOY66
00°3E SNy S0UBISANG 8066
00°ST UILL Q1 J2A0 UONBINPT 0232Q0L LOPBB
0ocL (U ¢1-g) uoiEaNpP3 032eqOL 90P66
00'052 USIA SS3U|I9M [BNUUY Juanbasgng aledtpapy 6£¥0D
00052 Jap|o pue s1eek 69 Wexa [easiuyd 43 LBE6B6
00°Z¥Z SIEBA $9 0] OF Lwexs [easAyd 43 96£66
00212 sieah g¢ 0j g1 ‘wexa [eosAyd 43 S6E66
00912 s1edh L) 0} Z| ‘wexa jeaisAyd 43 ¥EERE
00°002 siead || ybnoiy g twexs jearsiud 43 CHEB6
007002 sieah ¥ 01 | (wexa jearsfyd 43 ZBE66
00002 Jedh | > :wexd eoishud (43) waned pausygeis3 LBEBB
00°0LE SuInafll B Ul 93UD AUQ 24BIIPAA NISIA (BIIU] 2EP0D
60°0LE 19A0 pue sieak gg wexa [easiyd gN 18EBB
007282 s1eh $9 0} Op “Wexs |easAyd gN GBEGH
00°ZtZ sieaf g¢ 0} g1 wexs [easAyd gN 58266
00°6¥%2 sieak /| 0} Zp ‘wexs eashud gN ¥9L66
00'9ZZ SIEDA || 0} G JWexd [eaisAyd gN £8£66
00°122 SIeaA 0} | jwexs |edsAud 4N 70£66
00°bb2Z Jeah | > wexad eaisAyd (dN) usiied meN LBE6S
0029z ‘Ui O xosdde awn sAyd "aianss d "qeise AQ GLZ66
00602 ‘uiw gZ xoadde awp sAyd ‘21oa2s id "ge1se AD ¥1.266
00° 121 (3d L0Q 'ou) "ulw G| Xoudde dwn sAyd -ajesapow ‘id "qeiss A0 £1266
002, (34 wawAoidwy o) “umu Q| xeidde swn sAyd-Jouiw d "gejsa AQ Z1L266
[EF]
0o'cy L1266

Ayeoads peywy sul tiw § xoJdde swn) ‘sAyd omym rewuiw 1d (geisa) pausigelss AQ




00226 {uoneJotsaa |euy Buipnioxa) Jousjue - Adelay) |BUED JOOY oLeea
00'8¢) (uonesolsal [euy Buipnioxa} Awojodind onnadelsy ) 0zZ2ed
00°g¥ uoieso)sal ¢} uGlIppE Ul "Yjoot Jad - uonusial uid 186204
00'¥61L suid Aue Buipnpul ‘dnpiing 2105 05620
00°58 Buyiy onepeg 0v620
00°€22 yieo] Alewud - umoud [93)8 SSI|UIEIS PAIEILGEISIH 08623
00°82 UMOJ]) Jusuaday 02620
00°6Z ved Jo AejuosAe|un Juswasay oLezd
00°000°L (uy@210d) (1AW SNODaId -UQU ‘UMOID) 16420
00's2T Joug)sod ‘S80BUNS SI0W IO § - 3))SOdLLIAD PISEg-UISDY yec2a
00'eze Jousisod ‘sa2epns ¢ - asodwod paseg-uIsay e6e20
007081 Jopslsod ‘seoeuns Z - spusodulod paseq-uisay Z6czZa
00°8€1L 1ou9)s0d ‘eoBUNS | - SusSodW0D PIsEq-UISeY L6£zZd
00'ecL wuad nsd soeuns | - aysodwos paseq uisay geeza
00°212 (ougjue) a|Bue |esiaul BuiAjOAUL JO SBIEHNS 2JOW IO ¢ - 8)S0dWI0d PasEq-LISay geeza
00'¥31 Joua)Ue ‘s30euns ¢ - ausodwos paseq-uisay ZEEZa
0D"0S) 10lIB)UE *$2%BHNS 7 - a)isodwod peseqg-uisey Le€zd
00°811 Joyaue 'aoepuns | - a)sodwon paseq-uIsay 0Eged
0o'L8L Wweueuuad 10 Alewud 'SS0RUNS BI0W 10 ¢ - ebewy LaLzqa
00's¥L wsueunad 10 Alewld ‘saoeuns ¢ - webewy 09Lza
00'STL waueunad 10 Aeunid ‘sadeuNS Z - WebjeLy 051Lza
00'S6 usuewusad 1o Aewud 'soeuns | - wWebewy orLza
00°LS Jauielurely soedg X14 aA0WSY g851d
00'56¢ [BI9)E(lq - paxy - Jauleliew aoedg §1G51Q
00°¢€8e [EIB)|IUN - paXI} - JIDUIBJUEIL 9IBdS 01514
00't¥ uool Jad - Juejess LSELQ
00'S¢ (papnjoui Jou sixejAydoid) apuoni; j0 uofjesidde jexdo] e0zLa
. sjuaned
00°1S ysu saued ybiy o} sjesapow 1oy uoneadde annadeiay) (usiuiea apuong [eado | 90z1d
00°28 sixelAydosd /m apon|d jendo | soz1Ld
00°zZ8 sixe(Aydoid sm apuon|4 [e0do 10213
00795 pliy2 - sixejAydold 0zL1d
00718 Hnpe - sixeiAydold oLLLa
00°91) W Jlweloued 0£€00
00°£9 Swijy + - sBuima)g #4200
0008 swiy ¢ - sBuimang €200
00798 swiy Z - sbuimang 2/200
007ZZ iy a1buts - Buimeng 02200
00°5¢ Ll jeuonippe yoes - [eJoelix3 09200
1] Va4 Wiy 181y - [esoenx3 08200
00°ZE Wil |eSNED0 - [eloeny| ov20aQ
00°+Z Lpy [euonippe yoea jeaidenad - [rioeIu| 0£Z0Q
00°0¢ wyy 151y 1edidelad- (oAU 02200
00°L¥L {sbuimang Buipnioul} salas 9)9dWoD - [RIOBIN| 01200
00 (do-1s0d 10U JUBned paysiqelss) Pasnao) Walqold ‘pajwi - uonen|eas-ay 02100




95'LLL W2 5z'} 0} dn uoise] ubiuag Jo uoIsioX3 oLv2a
00°80¢ espenb Jad ‘'saoeds Yoo} € OF | - SUCIIOBIXS Liim Ualouniucs U 1ou Asejdojosany 12840
ueipenb
00°¥9€ 18d 'sa0eds Y100} SI0W IO $ - SUOHRDERIXS Yim uonounfues ul jou bmmveoﬂzd. gzeLd
00°06L $90BdS WoOo) ¢ 0} | $UcHIBxX3 yim uotioun(ucd ul Aisedojoanny LLEL(
00°€2Z Jueupenb Jad 'saoeds U)0o) a10W 40 - SUCIIIRAXD Yiim uonaunfuoa U Aisejdojosay 0lLE2a
11§ 454 {sunpaooud Bumno} s1001 Yoo} [Bnpisal Jo [eAowal [eolBIng 05224
(1R <4 4 Auog Ajgisdwion - Yloos paioedull JO [BAOLLIY ovzLa
00'PSE Auoqg Ajerped - oot papedw Jo jeaoLUay oecia
00°122 anssi Jos - Yoo} paroedu JO [BAOWSY 0z2.0Q
00°L12 Y1003 pRIdnID Jo |eAOWRI [2IBINS 0LeLa
00°¢Z1 1004 pasodxs 1o Yjoo] pardnia 'uonoenxy orLiQ
0026 Y}GG} SNONPIDSR - SJUELWIAI (BUOIOD ‘UoNae)X] 14120
00°88 abplig juawasey 0£69G
00°85¢C ainuad |eled Jejngipuep suijay L¥26Q
007852 ainuaq [Bied AlR|IXEN BuIley 0v250
00¥9Z aimuaq Jenqipuep s1edwoyD susy L2460
0092 aimuaq Aejlixely s)d1dwod suay 0260
00°'PET ainjuap |ewed Bunsixe o) dseo ppy 0095Q
00°951 ainuap |eled Buisixs o} Yoo ppy 0595Q
00821 yieat uaxoig soeidey 0r9sa
00°05L asegd ainjuag UISay Jiedsy 01954
00°821 yloo ] usnoig 10 Buissiy eoeday 0258sQ
00°051 aimua( sisidwo) usyoig Jieday 01550
00°29 Je|ngipuey ainuaq [BINed snipy [444°10)
0029 Ae|ixeyy ainjua(] jeied Isnipy 12+50
00°Z9 Jeingpuew asmuag siejdwoy isnipy L¥Ga
00°Z9 Aejxely amuaq aje|dwo) 1snlpy oLp5a
00°05TH aseq UISal YJOMaLUEL} [B)SUI 1SBD - 3IMuad [BIUE JEINGIPUBIA rLZE0
00O0ETL SSEQ WIS YIOMBLLE) [B12W }SBD - 2Inuop [eiLed Aejey cLesa
00rvs aseg Uisay - alnjua |elded Jeinqipuely zlesa
00'+He oseg ussy - aunusq [Bied Ae|ixely 11250
00°beZi JEINQIPUBA - BINJUI(Q] SjeIpauw| avisa
00PETE Aelixep - ainjuaq ajelpalw| 0£15a
00°8cLL Jeinqipuel - aimuag 2)eldwol) gzisa
00°8ELL Kepixew - aimuaqg a19(dwon 0L15Q
00°86 SoUBUBUIBN [BjUCpOLIad 0L6¥a
00'9% | sisoubeip pue uoNBNEAD SAISUSYAIAWIOS S|QEUS 0] JUBWAPUGSD YInow [nd §5E¥0
00'881 eipenbjyiasy ¢ o} | Buueid 1001 pue Buyeds [guopoudd Zre¥a
00861 ytaa) snonbnuod asow 1o ¢ Buued joo: pue Buyeoas [elucpoysy LPEYQ
A A Juespenbayss) snonfinuos £ ¢ 1 Aiseidoalbullb o Awoiosalbuin LiZya
00°698 (uoneioysal [eu Buipnioxa) Jejow - Adelayl |eued j00y QEEEq
00°00L (uonesoysad leuy Buipnoxs) pdsnaig - Adessy) [eued 100y azeea




00'FS SIun noH Z/L (lenpaipuy) ._.s_mo_ _ 80109
S3JIAYIS NOILY2NA3 HLTVIH
00°02 SNBSS N 2001 L
007051 (wnuedisod) ved jo uiew ‘Buluue)d pue pieed a1ed dwod ‘Boid swoy pap L8208
0005 ueld |emu) ‘Buiuuerd pue uoneulpiood sies ansuayaidwos ‘weiboid swoy [Empay 08208
00°0LL Bunsa) Brug e pepuedxy &¥00H
00°00% Bunsa) brugy sey LEFOD
oo'e awAed-0 pledpaN 0PN
. (sobseys buiddiys
005k ‘uojeuiunalag Agesi Woly JuawAed Spioosl [eoIPS 'X0) SS0IAISS SNOBLIB|IRISILY L8665
1981U03 ‘uaAIB Odd PN
10BIU0S ‘Sledwosu) |91 4O JuaWeal | crzn
MSU MO| 2)2|dWOodU! |G LT JO JeLeal] cieni
#)8dwodul |g 17 Jo Juswear] LLZN1
B0 palRdwos 1917 Jo uaLies) | 0ZeN
W$U MO| ‘Pataldiios 1917 40 Juawesd | 692N
¥si ybiy ‘pejeldwos 1917 jo JuswlEal | 8927
10BjUOD ‘DIIROIUI |91 4O WauLeal] 29ZM
3S1 MO] ‘pajeIjiul (g LT 40 USRI gezN
A8 4By “pajeriul 1917 Jo Waleal | 59zZN1
35U By "peas jou ‘add H0LGE
¥su ybiy “ynsal sAebau ‘gdd 3015¢
¥si ybiy ‘ynsaa saisod ‘Qdd 4016€
YSU MO| ‘peas jou 'add ¥zlnt
JUEIU0D "peal Jou 'Qdd £ZLN1
(LdOQ) Adeua ) aamuanald paalasq Aljoana g1 ZzLm
(10Q) Adesay | pamesgo Aoaag gL LZLNT
¥sU Moy 'Ynsel anebau ‘qdd 4015¢
AsU mo| Ynsal samsod ‘add 40LGE
10EN0S ‘Insas aanebau ‘qdd 4016¢
12ejueD ‘Jnsal aayisod 'Add d015¢
00°0 {paiddng @je)s} ysu ybiy ‘uanb add 085989
0070} wJo4 Buuaalos g1 LOOLL
S)NsaY 158 | -1S0d AlH 20¥66
§Z°0 (00613 peedXa 0] Jou abieyd 19ays Jad) spicoay (LIPS 4O AdoD 73668
usuneal], /9o 66¥66
SIDIAYIS HIAHLO
SLCh alsed I LOFNT
00°00Y plencs ajg 1esnjoa0 0¥66a
00°26 anpasosd Joulw - uted |elusp JO JUsWes) (Aousbiawsa) salened oLLBq
007052 2NSSH SNO3ULINIGNS IO ‘UI¥S 'BS0aNW woly Apeq ubialoy) Jo ([eACWSY 0540
00°3¥Z 2nssn Yos [eloeljul - $S33sqe J0 abeuresp pue uoisioul 01520




00°9¥ (0'd'y) 31NHV -13INVd SILILYd3H Y1008
0062 TINVd NOILINNS TvyN3Id 69008
00'0¢ 13NV QidIN 19008
00°25 1INV DI1H13LSHO - TYLYNIHd 95008
00°'v2 1INV 31108V.LIW NIHIHAWOD - dIND £5008
00°62 TINVYd J1ATOHELITTI LS008
ooy 13NV HLTY3IH TvHEN3ID 05008
00°'LZ YO w101 13NVd J1T0gvLaN -dIN8 8008
00y MYHQT JO0T18 AMYTIIdYD 91L¥9¢
00'6 FHANLINNGINIA INILNOY GlLpoc
AHOLvHOaY
002 PlRIUS ace
00'} sdi Bupppon
000t (3} ssau_An BYISHIOAA 247
05°Z¢ (Q) ssUIRAA SUSNIOM BT
00°S¢ (D) ssoulBpA SHSHIOM BN
05'L¢ (Q) ssaujapn BUSHIOAA BY
00°0F () SSBU|RA SUSHIOA 9
0002 uchedInp3 yijeaH |enplaipy| S¥¥6S
05°6¢ Bulusalog peaH AuyjesH
00°0L JIseg-ply 15414
00°0L1 A3IV/HdD/PIY 1SL SUIEIPSY 8 UINPY
00°0 Q3LYNINITT - ¥4 + PIUD 3 UNpY) gIvim UdD
000 Q3LYNINITT - g¥d + a3 ey + (pIYD) Q3vim udD
00°0L a3avrddo vielpad
00°06 d3IAViddO JUEIped 3 Inpy
00°0L A3vddO Inpy
00°0 A3 L¥YNIWIMI - (PIUD B INPY) AIvim 4dD
0006 J3V / ddD / P 1SE InpY
00'9 slalleg bBunpesig ¥do
00701 asinoy sbusjeun
00’9 shay OILg
00°¢ Jopuop Ag Bunse ) 183 Apog
00°L siadyen Ag Bunse) o4 Apog
00°01 stadije) B Jopuo e Apog
00°05¢ SIS 4980 N UYL Ageg
00°SE ($a08) Wsia uePRaIp ‘BulRSUN0D [BUONLINN 0LP6S
00°S¢ (s904) ¥sia vernap ‘welbosd JuswsBeuew ollageIq SO¥6S
00ve {SHUM UK G L) [BNPIADUIADBYD-8Y LNIN £08.6
00°82 (sNuUn W S1) reUENPIAIDU] NN 20846
0009 weJBoid uonUIARL] SSl9GeIg LOEFO
00'SZ un uiw gg ‘dnorsy ‘Ausaqo Joy Bulasunog [eICIABLSE 2084 0] 208} 2¥09
00'52 un uiw G| fenpiaipul ‘Alsaqo 10} Burasunag |eiciaeyag ade4 0t 3oL Ly¥09D
00'61 spun InoH Z/L {dnoio) 18SA 60109




00°0¢ JANY3S 'NIFLOEOLIS-VHITY 50128
00'sY JdALONIHd ‘NISAAYLILNY-L-VHd Y 0128
00°zZ¢ WIVLOL ‘NISJAY LILNY-L-YHd TV £0128
00°St INOYILSOATY 88028
00'82 3SY100TV 58028
00°0S TONYHL3 H1v3dg -TOHOD 1Y 5028
0070 (AONYH13) A0079 - TOHOD TV 55028
00°¥¢ INIEN WOANYY - NOILYH Lv3¥D / NINNGTYOYDIN £v02Z8
00'6Z NINNGTY 0r0z8
00°0S H1OV ¥2028
00y asuodsal |amoq

AJolewwelyur pue siiylIe ‘ sisoydul) ‘saseasig AJOJBWIWEU| 104 Yoed (/7,9 ‘S9) /€18

usjeainba uadnue auo !(siusjeainba uadnue ‘8a) uonnjosas moj ‘SuidA | ssed vH

00°0TT stsAeue auab (AigeinbeoassdAy Areypaiay ‘69) (] 10308} uoREINBEOD ‘UIgWoIYI0IY 0vzZL8
00°0S) (4140) SISATYNY INID SISOUTId DILSAD 02218
00'6L 1831 ADNVYNDIHd INIHEN GZ0Lg
00°LL 34028 O/M 'OLNV ‘SISATYNINN £0018
009} (9%9d) 3d0ODS O/M OLNYNON SISATYNIEN 20018
0022 «IdOIS/M OLNV ‘SISATYNIYN L0018
00°0t FHOW HO 9 :STVIITDAD H3HLO ANV DITIADIYL ‘SINVSSIHLIAILNY /££08
00°0t S-€ STIVIITOAD HIHLO ANV DITOADIYL 'SINVYSSTHAIAILNY 9££08
00°0% 2 H0 L STVOITOAD HIHLO ANY DITOADINEL ‘SINYSSIHLIAILNY Gee08
00°€L (L0108 seoe|dey) TOHODTY - NIIHOS ONHA 0zZ€08
00°0S (00108 seoeldey) Q3141034S ISIMETHLO LON NIIHOS ONHa ¥0£08
0005 (00108 s99e|day) AHAVYHOOLVYINOYHD YIAYT NIHL NITHDS ONyad €008
00°0S (00108 seoe|dey) IHNAID0E HOYI DNYA TTONIS NITHIS ONHd Z0e08
00°05 (00108 sa0E|day) 3DIANIS 40 I1VA ¥3d TINNVHIILINW NITLDS ONHa L0E08
00°0S (00108 s8de|day) uoReWIRUOD /M | LTNW/ALYLITYND ‘NITYIS ONYa 00£08
00281 ONAA AYSSY JAILVLILNYND 66208
00°8¢ INITTAHJOIHL 86108
0028 SNINITOYDVL L6108
00'6% ao07d (ENNWYIVHISNNIIOHIS 66108
00'LY (AONIHJ/M) INITOSAN -INOAINING 88108
00°Z¢ TYLOL ‘NIOLANTIH - NILNV1IA 68108
00'6¢ IV LISHYEONIHd #8108
00°LE WNIHLIT 8.108
00°8¢ WYL13IDVHILIATT L2108
00°0¢ (Q12V DI113DVIAJOEIA) AIDY JI0EdTVA #9108
00°LE NIX09Id z9108
00°EY ao014d - ANIYOdSOTIAD 85108
00°0L 3344 10134931 25108
00°ZE 1013993 L -IVLOL ‘INIJIZYNVALYD 95108
00°eY (z5 108 saoe1day) INITALIMLINY S££08
0005 (00108 sade|day) uonRWILUOD /M | LINW/ALYLITVYND ‘NITHIS DNYAd LEF0D
00°L2 J3NYd NOILONNS D1LVd3H 9,008




00’y q01avdLs3 0,928
00°C¢ NILL3IOdOYH LAY 89928
00°8% J0IYLIOWD 259¢8
00728 SVY3IHA -INOHILSOHANYIdIOHAAHIA 12928
00'0¢ Z1-8 NINY LIA 20978
00°'62Z X343 Wenbiwss -NJINGOTO0AHD S6528
00°LE 1531 IONVHYITO IANINILYIHD S2628
00°0¢ WOANYY/INOH +2 INIEN -ININILY3YD 04528
00°52 ININILYIHD 9528
0ovLL JNOILOYHA A "MdD £5528
oo've SAWAZNIOSI HdD At rAt]
00°ST AYLOL MdD 0ssze
00°'LE IYLOL 1081 LHOD £66Ze
00°L¢ HNOH ¥¢ aANIYN - 3384 0SILY0D 0gszg
00°sZ1 SUNMSSOHD NIDVTIOD £25¢8
00'st N0y $Z 2UNN - J1vHLID L0528
00°8S WNYAS OVLOIWYT) INIDIHLOWY] [AT4t
0008 WNINOYHD S6¥Z8
00°5Z1 SONIS "INVYND 'AHAYHDOLOWOEHD L6¥Z8
00°62 WNHIS/ATE-10E3LSTTOHD qovee
00'62 ANIYN -3AIHCTHD SEFCS
0062 Ac01g-2ACTHD SEPER
00°Zg NINSY1dOTNHID 06€EC8
00°vS SIANIWVIOHOILYD II9HL ¥8ce8
00°.L¢ Y139 ‘INILOYVD 08€Z8
00°¢ce NIDILNY DINOAHSWIONIOHYD-VID 8.€828
00°8g QO0Tg-3AIXONOW NOGUvYD SLEZ8
00°9¢ aoo1g-a3a1X0I1gJ NOgYVD LFANA
00'LE NI NIANIDIYD 0PEZ8
o0'oe paziuel -WNIDTIVD 0gee
00'62 WNIDTVYD 0LEZ8
000y WNY3S ‘NINOLIOTYD 80e78
a0'or aQ NINVLIA a0eze
00°0s AYSSYONNIWWI'GO0TE LTND20 Tvd3d ¥L228
00°62 LLOIHIA ‘NIandITg e A
00°SZ good L11No30 1vD)3ad 0/ze8
00°62 LIY10L 'NIgNdIg L¥TC8
00'.¢ 101 'sdidv 3119 6eegee
00'LY WNA3S NIMNFOID0YEIIN 2-¥.139 [ANAAS]
0009 SINISHY glLeg
00°Ilt L1S3L FWAZNI | NISNILOIONY ¥9LZ8
00°9t INOIQINILSOHANY L5128
00°0¢ ISYIANY 05128
00°8¢ VINOWWY 0¥LZ8
00°S? LLNYND IISNIS 'SAIDV ONIWNY LELZR




00'vS AMNDEIN GZ3c8
00'sZ WNISANDYW GELER
00'62 NIALOHL0dIT - 1934 131 LZLES
0052 NISLONMdOdIT LO3NIa -1aH gL/E8
00°5Z NOILYLILNYND-STID1LEVd NIZLOYdOdI Y0.E8
00°5P NOILOYH4TY dH HLIM INYND ¥ 35 2ILIHOHLOHLDT 13 LOLER
00°8¢ (YINIZLOHJOAI §60E8
000¢ 3svdi 06968
0062 (unpe) avan 559£8
0062 IWAZNT (HAT} (@) TLVLIOVT SL9E8
000} 1§31 ONIGNIE NOHI 055€8
005 NOHI ovsEs
00°¢e IIHA-NINSNE 1Z5E8
00°0g NITASNI GZ5E8
00004 wId AYSSYONNWNI 0zZ5e8
00°00L AJOGILNYNON AYSSYONMININI 9.5g8
00°st eydie p-2 ‘INOYILSIDOHI-AXOHOAH 26PLQ
unILg SAIBIEND G "PIOE D1S0B|0PUAXOIPAH YYIH 16FER
00°L5 INILSAIOWOH 060€8
00'62 1531 NISOTDOWIH Q3 LY IASOIATO - ABH DLy 9£0e8
0098 AHAYHOOLOWOHEHD NISOTIOOWS3H Lzogs
000 gv131VLS QL 113D 3HMIIS 0Z0g8
0056 JIATT IVLIIW AAYIH fL0cE
00°%¢ LNYND ‘NIGOTO0LAYH 0LOES
00°s¢ (H} NIdOYLOAOYNGD - H1 Z00E8
00°2Z¢ (HS4) NIdOYLOQYNOD -HSS L00ES
00 F¥ NIZLOYd Q3LYDATD G8628
0062 199 L1628
00°'s¢ INYND -3WAZNT Ad9O 66628
00°LL SIIdINYS QIATAY-LLD 25628
00°'L1 uawizads TYNOILIdAY- LSIL IONYHITOL 3500119 26628
00vS HHZ (L19) 1$31 FONVEITO0L ISOONTO 155628
0082 1831 3502N719 NYAITINS.O 05628
008l «LNYND o018 ‘380919 LP6E8
00°5¢ WNY3S NIY1SYD Lr628
002§ 361 NINGOTDYININYD 58128
00°0¢ yoes ‘Wh| 'ob| ‘gbl "'vBI NITNaOTISYININYSD ¥8.28
00°0% WNY3S AIov 21104 928
007261 NILD3NOYEI4 w134 LELT8
0092 NILIYY3S 87.78
00"y ALY LILNYND 'SLvd Tv034d 0LL28
00°PE LIYND '$3034 ‘'saldirsLyd 50.28
00°FF W3S ‘ANOYLST 62928
00°}p TOINLS3 12928
00°'S¥ N3IS0HLs3 24928




00724 ONOWWI DNILYTNNILS QIOYAHL-ISL Eldas
00'¥¢ INCWHOH WILS QIOYAHL -HSL E¥irg
00°L2 IANIXOIAHL 3344 -1 SEFYE
00°€2 IANIXOYAHL IWLOL -v1 9EPr8
00°Cy INIAVIHL  L-9 NIWVLIA SErPe
00¢E Y101 -INOHILSOLSTL E0F18
00'2S 3344 -INOYILSOLSTL 20vv8
00'0¥ NIJIWOLVINOS S0E+3
0062 "NOH +Z 3NIMN -ANICOS 00EYS
00°6C WNY3S -WNIQos G6Cr8
00°0% NINIH rreb8
00°6t YWSY1d - 99 LIA L0Z¥3
00°'PE ASOANRN/SISIYOHL-0313 NIZLONMJ 991+8
00'0c INVND WNY3S 'SISTYOHA-9313 NI31OYd S9Lv8
00'62 4NOY $Z 10 WOANYH INIMN 'NIFLOHd 95178
00°#Z WNY3S 10371438/ L01 - NI31OYd e
00°cE 3394 ‘vSd Palye
0008 IY1LOL 'vSd £5118
00°ge NILOY1OHd o lv8
00°5€ ANOYILSIDOHd Prive
00°ce NIWNGTYIdd yELYE
00'Le IANIFN -NNISSYL1Od EELPB
00'62 WNY3S -INNISSY.10d ceLvg
00'6Z INIEN = HINVOHONI -SNHOHISOHd 50148
00T WNY3S- DINYDYCONI -SNYOHJISOH Q0L+
0062 3SVIVHASOHd ANV 52018
00°2¢ ISYLYHASOHd dIdv 31v¥1S0xd 99018
006 Joded suzenn A LiQI0V AINTd AQOS 986£8
00°LE LOYLINI-INOWHOH TIOHAHLYHYA -Hd 046€8
00'9¢ ANIHN YH ¥#¢- LVIVXO Sr6E8
00°Lt ANIAN -ALNYIOWSO GE6ES
00°i€ Q001 -ALIVIONWSO 0c6es
00°5CE «LNYND 'FIONIS "TI0V DINYOHO LCBER
0092 IdSv/A088/V10 QI NOILYLNW ¥L6E8
00°9Z NOILYNIAYXT DI LANID Zl6e8
00°5) NOILNTIOS3d HOIH A8 AI+NOILYYYd3S 606E8
00°92 NOAQJY IdWY JI3TINN 3TNI3T0N L06E8
00°0€ 03S Z MWV J13712NN ITINDTTOW 006£8
00'92 »HOVI 'ITdINY D13100N 3TNDITON 8688
00'9¢ HOHJOY.LITFT3 139 ITNDFTON Y68EY
00'SE 3137T0NN 31L¥10SI ITNDITON 168€8
00°0F 334G LON AY1INOTIHAIN £88¢E8
00°89 3T Ld3d D1LIHNIHLYN AdAL-L -dNG 088¢e8
00°'6¢ ANYND IWNYE3AS HO INIYN -NISCT1D0AN ¥.8E8
00°6¥% INIEN YNOH ¥2 - TYL0L -SINIYHdINYLIN SEBEQ




00°st «JLNYND ‘NOILYJYHOIA Ni¥gId 6.£58
00°§5 JONVLSISTH (dOv} O NIFLOHd J3LVYAILDY L0£S8
00°L9 3344 S NIFLOHd 9068
00°19 IYLOL 'S NIFLOHd elolafels
005 ALIAILDOY O NIFLOYd £0858
00°€9 NZDILNY 3 NI31OHd FAN S
00ty 1531 NIDILNY LIl NIGWCHHLILNY LOEGE
00'LS 1831 11l NIFWOHEHLILNY 00£48
00'56 ALIAILOY X1 HOL1Ov4d 05758
00°S6 ALIAILLDY IIIA HOLOVA 0r258
0056 ALIAILDY A HOLDY S 02258
00°0¢ NOILY1IHdYI LN HYAWS aooTg 09058
00'62 Q3LVYIWOLNY LNAOD 13131V 1d 69058
0062 QILYWNOLAY ( TLADOMNTT) COOTE - LNNOD-DGM 062
00'62 A3LVINOLNY LNNOD JLADOINDILIN S¥058
00°LS A3LYWOLNY LNNOD 28y L$0G58
00'v2 (05008 40 LNINOWOD) I1ITJWOD 282D 22068
00°9Z 28M 4410 OLNY/M D89 52068
00°gL NISOTO0WIH 81058
00°g) 1IN20LYINTH #1058
009t JB3WS PIq TYANYIN -TvILNIH3441Q D9M 10068
007z QALYWOLNY- TVILNIYIS4Ia 29 0058
00'o¥ 1831 IWIL ONI3ITE 20068
00'zZ¢ WNY3s vND-92H £0L8
00'¥¢ WNNY3IS LNYMD -ODH Z0.+8
00es 3alLd3d-2 1898
00'0¢ ONIZ 0£9¥8
00°00Z L= 1A 265t8
00'sZ1 unoig - /g uiwens 1658
00°0P ¥ NIV LIA 065t8
00°LE HNOH #Z 3INIEN -¥INA G858
00'6Z INISN -QISV DIHN 09518
00'sZ aoo1a -aIdv J1En 055+8
0028 INIEN YH #2- NSOOHLIN vIdn 0PSP8
00'6Z NIOCHLIN ¥I¥N- NNd 0Z5t8
0070k wLNYND 'NINGHOHL ¥oPPe
00'6Y JSYIATY -EL Zarra
00 Pe (g-14Y AVSSY 334461 L8¥+8
00°2E {1} ANINOYAHLCAGHYL -€L 08¥P8
0082 HaHL {0 PvidnvLie gl 6118
00'6Z S3AIYADATIDIEL 8L¥¥8
00°gg NIHHAASNYH L 9orFs
00°6Z ONIAY ININVTY (1d9DS) 17V 0obvg
00'6Z ISYHIISNYHL (LODS) 1SV 058
0028 WNY3S- 3ALIA el




00°0¢ INYND 'ADOT0HIS 0019 HILIL-HdY £6598
0082 LSALLYLIIYND "ADCTOH3S 300 -ddH 26598
00'1Z 1831 WIWYIOVHLNI 9L 08598
00°69 1531 109 NOYIIHIALNI -9 08798
00'0¢ ANYND ""OLOVH IO LYWNIHY- vd LEYOS
00702 IVHIA “LSTL NOILYZITvHLN3AN - Y3111 STiEvy Z8£98
00°LE AQOFILNY IVINOSOHDIN 9/£98
00'CL WOILYH/LNNOD ILATOSAaY '8QD / +AD ]
00°sE INNOD IWLOL 'ST130 L 65898
00'9¢ AQOEILNY 01OV DISNIYLNI 0rEos
00°0Z ¥ NIFIHNI 98£98
00'LS ASD/ANIHNSISYOHIT XIANNIAN G228
00°L2 JANY3S ‘SISTHOMI-T XIAONNINWI ¥EEOR
00'€g FALLYLIIVND-STIA08IINY TTHHOEILTH -ONOW 20£08
00°¢e "HOWNL AYSSYONNIN ~5Z1 WO ¥0£98
00°S¢ ‘HOWNL AYSSYONNINIW -6-61 ¥ LDEGS
00°9¢ HOWNL AVSSYONNIWWI- 62°£Z WD 00£98
00°8g ‘HOWNL AVSSYONNINNI w2 00£98
00°s¢ «H3LI1 "AQOAILNY LNIDSIHONTS 95298
00°s¢ LNITHDS ‘AQOQILNY LNIDSTHON TS 65298
00°¥e J19VLOVHLIXI-AA0TILNY NIDILNY YvI 10NN GEZ98
00°S¥ LANYHLS 319NIS "AQOTILNY YN 92298
002¢ ANVYHLS 3719N0A0 4O FJALLYN -ATOEILNY ¥NJ GZZ98
00°Z¥ ACQO8ILNY {(ISYIONNOIIHAXOTA) ISYNG 51298
00°'S¥ Y 301 Ld3d " INYLID DIDAD-dDD 00Z98
00°LE W{0SHD) TYLOL 'INFWITINOD Z9L98
00°cg WNIADILNY “LININITHWOD 09198
00'LE $$BI0 YoBD 'QOGILNY NIdITOIgEYD 2198
00°Le IVIQYYD - SH°NIFLOYd IAILOVIE-D LG8
00°Z¢ Zr198 seve|day - WO| 'O ‘STIAO0GILNY L NIFLONAOOATS 2 Y139 e Ret!
00°0¢ NIFLOYd FAILOYIN-D ovLo8
00°62 wH3LIE 'O NISATOLdIYLISIANY 09098
00°08 103413-SIAOGI LNY SYITONNILNY “¢YNY 85098
00vz NIZYDS NIDHTTIVILINA F6] D141034S NIDET 1Y 50098
00'9Z1 {s1UN $27) IAILY LILNYADINGES ¥O IAILYLILNYND I6] 21415348 NIDYI TV £0098
00'54 v3 NOILN1ILSANS 'SWIL NILSY T1dOgW0HEHL Z5168
00'82 JIYILEYd '3WIL NILSY1dOSNONHL -11d 0eL58
00°s2 NOILIGIHNI NILSY1dOgWOHH L G058
00t YINSY1d AIWIL NIFWNOHHL 0£968
00°00L “uonoBy Xas-NOILONAIY 29Y9-1S31 1132 IS 09958
0062 QaALYWOLNY (¥%3) 31vHa3as 25958
0062 LA3LYWOLNYNON 'I1vd g3s 15968
00°%S LA31ATA "WONIA ¥3dIA 113SSNY £1958
0082 FWIL NIGWOHH LOY UNI/ 1d 01968
00°0¢ NIASONIYg!d ¥RESE




00'sz NOILVOIHILNIA! WSINYDHO 219043V I4NLTND 21048
00°38 «000TE 1d30X3 'VIY3L1ova 219093 vYNY JHNLIND 520/8
0057 YIHIO ‘YId3LOvE ‘FHNLIND LL0LS
00'sZ Al SAILANNSTEL HLIM HIHLO "YId313va ‘I5NLTIND 0208
000 qeT alels 01 3¥NLIND (83234 100LS S¥0/8
00°8¢ @) HY "ONIdAL Q0018 L0BYR
00°0§ .08Y ‘ONIdAL 00018 00698
00°9¢ wLOTHIT '1S3L SN00D 08898
00°Z¢ 08 -NOILYDI4ILNIAI AGOFILNY 0.898
00°0¢ 28y -NIFHDS AQOTILNY 05598
00°§5 ) JNHIANOD ‘1S3 avY D daH 0898
00'sSL X3l}ayd O d3IH - Z9E0SS 2P0 1531 £0898
00'LE 1531 9v 2 SILI1Yd3H 20898
00vE AQOSILNY NITNFOTO0YAHL 00898
001 SON AQOSILNY SNHIA 06,98
00°¥E g3L1IL AQOAILNY HILSOZ-Y T1IINEVA 28108
00°29 1531 WHIHANOD SIMHJAS Yd-d1 08.98
00°vE AQQHILNY 99 IANOD YINSYIdOXO L L4498
00°ce D91 Y3LIL AQOGILNY ¥103any 50799
00'0g 991 Y3 LiL AJOFILNY ¥T1138ny 29/98
00'8¥ HIATS 0FLL0dS NI AMDOY-8Y YISLLINOIY 15798
0099 WOI-D91 618-A003ILNY SOHIAOANY i¥i98
00°ze AQOEIINY 991 - 43 LIL SdWNNN GELOB
00°1E JADI AQOEIINY ¥ d3H 60,08
00°Lg WIVLOL "AJOAILNY ¥ d3H 80/98
00°ce AQOCILNY 38 43H 20498
00°6Z AAY LITYND -AQQAILNY 3DV44NS 9 43H 9098
00'Le D ATOFILNY IHOD 8 d3aH 60,98
00'Z¢ WIVLOL 'AQQEILNY 340D 9 d3H ¥0/98
00Z¢ ONINITHIS "Z-AlH/L-AIH £0298
00°¢E L-AIH 10298
00y Z 3dAL XIT1dWIS SIdHTH 96998
00’ LY 991 L IdAL XT1dWIS S3d¥3H 56998
00'6¢ WOI 2% L 3dAL -1S31 X3 1dNIS SIdHTH 6998
0002 AHOLYINHIINOD M AIHIATLH 68908
00'6€ INYND D91 - 140TAd HALOVEOITIH 12998
00°0% (vOAIQISdVYD TVHIA-AQOEILNY HYVYE-NIFLSdS 59999
00'0g OV UV TONN YNAI-AQOEILNY Huva-NIFLSdT £9998
00°0¢ NIDILNY ATV YI-AQOILNY HHva-NI31Sd3 £9008
00°ge JAD! ' AQOTDILNY AND 5¥908
00'348 991 -AQOTILNY AN 7998
00°0% ATJOGILNY WOI ¥IGAINYTHD Z£o9g
00°St AQOEILNY WO ASVISIA INAT 81998
00'gs M AHOLVYINYGIINOD-AQQBILNY ISYISIA IWAT 21998
00°0% HOLYEOS LvD AQOEILNY YTIINO L YYE 11998




0002 AVNIDVYA HO TWOIAYTD 'ADOTOHLYIOLAD L¥188
00°822 o« YNG 'IJALONTD D SILILYdIH 20648
00’8t QILJO/M AVSSY ¥ Jd3HLS 08848
sv ASYH 20848
00°0¢ {(301ML 300D H3LNT 8 ANY ¥ HLOg €04 Y30 65) N4 AQidvy #0882
00°0zE wisiuesio yoea ‘uoieyent
paydads asimialylo Jou ‘(YNY JO YNG) PIIe 213[2nu Aq uonalap juade SN0 66448
00°0.9 WAIZ 86L.8
00001 pawuojiad I ‘s adAl sapnjaul ‘Ajuc 8T pue 9T sadAy {AdH)
snilaeLlofided Uelny {{yNY JO YNG) PI98 2I3|3nU Ag UORIS1ap 3uaSe snoiaju) 5798
rs$088'ces wepuadap 1881 MSIY-HDIH AdH/dYd ¥29.8
00°0F (tzosg ssoeiday) , 3808 WY 'YNO 'AdH £29.8
00°0¢ g0¥Hd dWV ‘YNJ 'IvIOHIHONOD'N 165.8
00'¢e «808d 10 'YNJ 'JYIOHIHONOD'N 066.8
00°SLE (NN IENSILNYAD 'YNA 'O SILILYdTH 20548
00SEL YD - 390dd dWY "YNY "D SILILYd3IH L26.L8
00°292 d0d - LINYNOD "WNJ ‘9 SILILYd3IH L16.8
00T ANDINHOIL 359044 AIIAITdWY SNHIASTYOIWOLAD 96v.8
00°0¢ BN J0 qems dIoD4E] "YNGO ‘HOVYH L YIGAWY THOD L6¥L8
000 9e7 21815 OL 'YNO 'HOWHL YIQAWYTHD L6ri8
00eg J908d YNQ A9 HOYY L VIQAWYTHD 06v.8
00'8¢ W13 'OV SNYIAYLOY GZvi8
000 g1 31VLS - vI3 'OV 1-AlH 06E/8
3nsad 33uis ‘seipognue Z-AlH PUE T-AIH Yim ‘{s)ueBnue T-AlH poyiow dais
-3(dinw ‘aaneyuenbiwas 1o sanewenb ([yowi] Azsse JLAIBLIOULLN|ILUSYIGUNLU LU}
00'9Z ‘[ws$in3] Aesse uaglosounwwl paxyulj-swWAZUS ‘[yiJ] ARsseounuwg 68€L8
awAzua ‘83) ‘anbiuyaal Aesseounwiw Ag Uo1I319p UBIUE JUSSE snoFAYU|
00°Zg W13 'OV 39 SI1Lvd3aH 0SE.8
00°62 W13 DY 30V4HNS 9 SILILVYJDIH 0¥EL8
00'e9 VI3 ‘NADLINY 10018 'THOTAd ¥43L0va0DIT3H 9EELQ
00°0F VI3 "9 PUB ¥ UIXOL 319D WNIQIYLSOTD LLANA]
00°or (IvND} - NIXOL @ 3D44Ha°D 0gci8
00°5L HANIANITYS ' LINNOW 13M oLesg
00°0L 013 UOJI "3W0IYoL -NIV LS X3 1dINOD “HYINS 602.8
00’611 WNIVLS TVIDTdS "HYINS 10¢.L8
008l HYIWS -NIVLS WYHD S02.8
00°6¢ COIN  3FG0OYDIN - 3191Ld3ADSNS 98LLB
0o0'og UGNENUSIUOD-SH YIS ST LISVHYL UNV YAD L4128
00°5L WyYX3 WHOMNIC [#A¥A]
00°LL (800-8)U) QOJOYHLEY WyX3 DIdODSOHIVIN 89148
00°52 QI0V JUIFTONIN A8 NOILYDIJILNIAI F3dNL1ND 6FLI2
00T FANLIND VIHI LOvd aNIFN 28048
00°92 LNNOD ANGIO/2HNLIND IANI™EN 98018
00'09 ATTNQ NJTHDS 34NLND L80.8




00°SZT

Hsip 315 udnlay

00°SZ1 USIA SA1LYNSUOT
00°SLE Hwudd {MMAd) |12 491ea7 Bunjuilq 23e11d
{Mmad) suem 1a1esm Bupjulg 2eaud
a9y 934 pABpUERIS JO %0E 51 83 (d03) Huad uondo Jeauibul,
PJEPUELS %0E
1e3 Jad 73 Huad sieday |elsawwos)
00'0 U Jleday [ziauapisay
00°SZT 834 IISIA WIN13Y
00°SZT 34N1INIIS O} SUOIIPPY
00°SZT HSIA 2115 122UU039Y 2WOH 2)Igow
00°'SZT USIA SAIIELNSUOD
00°5¢¢ juel 318303y
00°'052 AS/OV/d| - Aep aad suojeD 07T-0- {W00Ipag Jad) WaisAS 01 UCIIPPY
00'052 Aep Jad suoj|e5 0ZT-0 AjuQ Hwad AY
1e3 sad 59T SaWoY aJow
1O 7 YUm SWRISAS 13 SLIOOIPRQ 9 19A0 |e1lUapISas €] sanjdde osje - aV/dl |Biadawwo)
[e3 1ad 59'1 SOWOY 210U 1O 7 YUM SLUSISAS 18 SLLI0OIPa]
9 4240 |B[1UaPISSJ 0] sa)|dde osje (Jy) 10NJISUO0D 02 UOHEZLIOLINY [BIDISWILLOY
jed Jad 59-1 SILWOY 240W JO T YHM SwalsAs
'3 SWO0IP3q g 1340 |BIIUSPISSI 0] Salfdde Os{e - (d]) IR JUaLLSA0Id W |BI2IBLIKION
00°000°T SWoo.pdg s-p/Aep tad suoj|en 0Og-08Y Iv/dI
00°000°T sWooIpag §-p/Aep Jad suojjen 008-08t (AjUQ Jv) 12n135U07 01 UDlRZIIOYINY
00'000'T 5W00JpaF S-17/SUC||ED 009-08Y (AJUD dI} YwIDd Juswaacidw|
00°005 swoolpag g-z/Aep Jad suo|(|es 098-0rT Jv/dl
000sZ 12p0] Bupsodwo)
240 1310 Buriesauiaul ‘Aalid 3inea ‘Anid 14 B Suniwiad 1oy s34 uoen)ddy
00°'005 SWoolpag £-z/Aep 4ad suo|jeD) 09E-ObT (AUD DY) 30M4ISU0) 0} uonezoyINY
00°00S swoolpag £-z/Aep sad SUo||e9 098-0pT {AJUD dI) HuLad Juawsaoidw)|
{(MMSO) 1018 B1SEA 9)IS-U0
HLIVIH TYLNIWNOHIANIT
00°ST NOILITTIOD ALINYILYL D09 / 824 Bupuey 00066
00'SZ 334 NOLLOITIOD 9N¥A D09 /984 Buljpuey 00066
0002 1531 Nd34 FLLOD
00'8L (Jyvoraan} £ X SLINDDCWIH 82£09
052 4BUIBIUGD YIBS-STITddNS ANV SIVIHILVYIN 0L066
00°52 334 ONITANVH 00066
00°0€ DWY-.NOILDI LI WH3IHS "TYNY NIW3S LZE68
00°EE 100LS - oM 55068
00°0Z SIeAPIW - F34 NCILIATIOD dvd L6000
unyoLLg uigls Apogiue a(Bis jeniu ‘uswioadsiad ASILSUS0ISIYOLUNUALY Zrees
unjogs pesay ABojoyied Al 18] S0E8S
00°02 334 NOILDITI0D dvd| 06 52188
00°Lg d34d NIHL T¢NIDVA HO T¥2IAYAD "ADOTIOHLYJOLAD crigg




00°6L

S3pIdICIaH PRV PAIEULOIYD

00°6L a1esoydA|D
SPPIqIDH
00°6L d2L pue 4244 ‘9a3
00'6L SapIMsad snuoydsoyd-uadoiln
00°6L SIPIINSDY PABULIOIYD
5apPNRsad
Ansiway) suedip
00°vE uaenads nuassy
00°te LN fI1eIUN
00'vE 1sanbai 353U “UDPISALY ~ BpIION|Y
00'vE (33040143 3340/ ‘A0UICLG ‘BpIDIg) — S1INPOIJ-A] UONIDUISI]
00'vE {a10fins ‘apriojys ‘ApLoni4} — suoiuy
00°0L (uonesop swes woJj sajdwes £ 01 dn} Sunsat dn-mopjoy pea
00°0S flniunn + 9A0G0 WoLf wWnwixow g-T) - s|e1e [ENpIAIPY|
0o't9 |8ued sje1ay
00°LS WINIWGIYD JU|RARXSH
DO'EL {3unsal ysy o)) — [aued muesiou|
00789 {suoluy Si13jA) - |aued JIMEZIOUL
00°EL {23141UN /2100310 SUOIUY ‘SIPI3IAY) - [PURd DueSIou|
Ansiuay) suesiow)
00°0€ l13An Ja1ep0 21BAL BullsIXg
00'vE 119 121BAA S1BALd MaN
00'st Agojoiqouoiy pue Alsiway) oluedlou)
00'SE [19AA JO1BAN 31RAL] BunIsiXg
00°vE [F9AA JB1B/N D1BALId MBN
00°0S AZorolqousiy pue Allsiway) auediou|
00°TE 1127 J91BAN B1BALd Bunsixg
00"0g [I2A0 121BAN S1BALd MBN
0002 AZojo1qoaa)y pue Aslsiway) Juediou)
ASojoiqoaniy
00°6L (120 J31BA0 218ALld Bunsixg
00'6L 19/ JT1B AN B1RALd M3N
Adojoiqoasiy pue Ansiwsy) nuesiou) jpued |Ing
"(sHNs24 1521 4o uonelaldiaiul/ucn eueRdxa pue 531503 191G ‘Supydel) ‘FuiBexded
‘Azus ejep) suswpads Jo Buissanold pue Suipuey Joy aBieya g B 3pn|dul 589y |1V
Jundwegfsaag 1sa) Jajem
00°0 Jreday |9
00°SLT {uwad ur sadueyd ou) uonendx] a104aq HWIad JO [EMAUDY
000 (Hwaad AMANAd B YUm o11aunfuod Ul 2Uop JI 98182 OU) ||3MA B JO JUSWUOPUEQY




un/oo'1

yseaq

00'0T {uoizeayiou Jaye Aep Jad) aa4 Suipiecyg
Josuads J0su0ds Ag 195 83} - JuaAg palosuods - uondopy
Aq 1es 234
00°0Z 8o0q - uonendodiaag - uondopy
00°0T 12) - uonendodiaap - uendopy
0008 dog - (aas pasosdde AepijoH ‘B4 ‘(BASR) 1U2AT jeads - uondopy
00°0Z 123 - (uana@ panosdde AepljoH “Jied ‘|BAIlS34) UaAT (e1dads - uandopy
00°59 884 J05u0dS
00°0T (Aep tad) aa4 sunueseny)
00's 3RS 19¢
00'05 {uonaudsIp 5 132010 18) 7 uoido - uoineln
00°sZ {uonaaas1p 54921100 18) T uondQ - UoneD
00°SZ 224 Ulle|pay
00°SE (387 40 30Q) 5UBI1aA JOJ 894 uondopy
00°'St (423ays Bulialue 03 Joud paisinau Jo paieds sjewiuy) (enads - uondopy
00'59 doq - vendopy
00°59 18D - uopdopy
00°ST aqnd [esauad 1oy Buiddiyaoiany
SAIIAHIS TYNINY
00°05 eds 10 [00d |euonIppy
00'00T {Allenuue) 234 uonesddy jood
00°002 MBIIABY Ue|d |00d
00005 (Allenuue) 151y |JRUOILIPPY Y2ET - 1WA JOjEd 001181
00°00L {Aflenuue) 10184900/ 1IBUMQ - MIIASY UR|4 JOMB] 0011R]
00°05T Bunsixg - MaINSY Ue|d Jo[iRd 001IR]
00002 MIN - MBIATY UB|d JO[JRd 0011
uana aad go'ss HWLIAd 1usLaysgesy pood Aelodua]
007001 MIIADY UBld PUEIS POOY
00°002 $1EDSGT</URSNT - MIIATY UB|d 1USWILSI|ORIST 32IAIBS pOoS
00°002 S183S G7</MIN - MBIASY UE|4 1UBWIYSH(EIST 32AIDS POOS
00°05T 51895 {7>/BUNIsIXg - MAIADY UBld JUIWIYSIIGRIST a21AD8 PO
00002 S1BS HT>/MIN - MIIADY UBld JUBWIYSI[GEIST 931AJ3S POOY
DNIDAOT ANY 004
. "syjepads H
00°6Z1

paJ31siZay e Ag pawdopiad 2q 3snuw w0900 3jdwes) s|eaway7 21uediQ 3|1ie|op
00°6L s1anpoad wnajoliad

00'6L ueas (30$) s|eanwayd NueB JNaYuAs

00°6L

S@jeweqgle)




Macon Gounty 36 Panwell Ln,
Franklin, NC 28734
] " A N 5 ] (828) 3492222 (Phone)

, (828) 349-2570 (Fax)
We % Mf? gou/ eﬂlﬂw’ www.macontransit.com

Moo

To: Macon County Board of Commissioners
From: Kim Angel, Transit Director @

CC: Derek Roland, County Manager

Date: 6 August 2020

Subject: Macon County Transit Fare Structure Change

Macon County Transit has had to make changes to the transit system in order to adapt to
changes caused by COVID-19. Changes have included reducing staff, changing our Franklin
Mountain Gem route to one hour loops rather than 30 minute loops, limiting the number of
passengers on board in order to accommodate social distancing measures, installing plexi-
glass barriers in all vehicles to reduce risk of exposure to drivers, and implementing cleaning
protocols in the vehicles to reduce risk of exposure to passengers. We have experienced a
loss in ridership due to the COVID-19 pandemic, reaching as much as 74% loss but are now
recovering and building ridership again. Our loss of ridership last week (compared to the same
time last year) was only 38%.

In order to assist public transportation systems with cost recovery during this time, on March
27", the CARES Act was signed into law and provided $25 billion for transit across the
Country. NC's allocation of this funding was $94,941,001 for rural transit systems across the
state. The CARES Act provides flexibility to transit systems to recoup expenses due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The provided funds are 100 percent federal and can be used for
planning, capital and operations. Macon County Transit has received an allocation of $191,006
and is expecting to receive an additional allocation of $311,004. To date, we have claimed
over $175,000 of the first allocation. The additional allocation is intended to be used for
operations to cover costs of providing service. We are receiving CARES Act funding but will
NOT be receiving State operating funds for FY21. However, we feel the CARES funds will be
a sufficient replacement for the state operating funds that totaled $165,000 for FY20.

Due to the need to modify our trip scheduling and reporting process when we use the CARES
funds, we have found it necessary to modify our fare structure, This modification will allow us
to properly book trips without causing confusion and errors by staff. This change will also
temporarily provide some relief for passengers using our service. We are proposing pricing
for all trips be reduced to the same discounted rate we normally offer to elderly and disabled
passengers. This will allow us consistency in our trip bookings and our claims for the CARES
act funding.



The table below shows current fares and proposed fares. We anticipate using this fare
structure for ali of FY21 and will re-evaluate and propose a new fare structure for FY22 during
the budget process.

LR TR ki
‘ho change)

on route o

o

If you have gquestions about information in this memo or the proposed fare structure, please
let me know.



Macon County, North Carolina
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Macon County High-Speed Internet Access Service
Expansion Project

PROPOSAIL DUE DATE: 4:00 p.m., , , 2020

All proposals submitted must be presented in a sealed envelope to:
“Macon County Finance Department
Attn.: Ms. Lindsay Leopard
5 West Main Street
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

RFP NO. i

In order to be considered for selection, a proposal must be received by 4:00 p.m.

s » 2020.

Any proposal received after 4:00 p.m. , , 2020, will
not be accepted or considered.

Faxed or emailed proposals will not be accepted.

Proposals will be opened by Macon County at 4:00 p.m. ,

, 2020.




]

[

[y

[y
b

|.

(78]

ST

o

Background

In accordance with N.C.G.S. 153A-349.60. Authorization to provide grants, The County of
Macon is actively searching for an unaffiliated qualified private provider of high-speed
Internet access service for the purposes of expanding the availability of high-speed Internet
access service in all of the unserved arcas of Macon County which are specifiedin 2.1 below
for economic development in Macon County. The County currently has a large number of
its residents and businesses in those areas of Macon County which are specifiedin 2.1 below
who are unserved.

As used herein, RFP shall mean Request for Proposal.

For the purposes of this RFP, the definition of “highspeed Internet access service™ is Internet
access service with transmission speeds that are equal to or greater than the requirements for
basic broadband tier | service as defined by the Federal Communications Commission for
broadband data gathering and reporting.

For the purposes of this RFP, the definition of “qualified private provider” is a private
provider of high-speed Internet access service in the State of North Carolina prior to the
issuance of this RFP (grant proposal).

For the purposes of this RFP the definition of “unserved” is no highspeed Internet access
service availability.

If an unaffiliated qualified private provider of high-speed Internet access service is identified
as a result of this RFP, The County of Macon is prepared to consider, within its sole and
absolute discretion, partial grant funding through a grant agreement for a project for the
purposes of expanding the availability of high-speed Internet access servicein in all of those
unserved areas of Macon County which are specified in 2.1 below for economic development
in Macon County in an amount set within its sole and absolute discretion and which shall not
to exceed $580,000.00 of the total project cost.

Scope of Work

The desired scope of this project consists of making high-speed Internet access service
expansion to the maximum number of unserved users over a three year period within all of
the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald Mill, Otto, Norton, Mulberry, Tessentee,
and Scaly Mountain of Macon County, North Carolina which are unserved by high-speed
Internet access service for economic development in Macon County. The Proposer shall
describe n detail the Proposer’s plan for expanding the availability of high-speed Internet
access service within all of the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald Mill, Otto,
Norton, Mulberry, Tessentee, and Scaly Mountain of Macon County, North Carolina which
are unserved by high-speed Internet access service for economic development in Macon
County. The Proposer shall describe in its proposal the type(s) of technology that will be
used and the service delivery method(s). All funding from Macon County, if any, must be
applied to the initial two years of the initial one to three year phase of the project. It is also
desired that follow-up phases beyond the first three years be considered by the Proposer to



[ | 73
j—

I.

o [
s

connect additional customers on a demand basis. The additional phase(s) would be funded
solely by the Proposer.

Grant Funding Provisions

Inaccordance with N.C.G.S. 153A-349.60. Authorization to Provide Grants, Macon County
is prepared to consider, within its sole and absolute discretion, partial grant funding for a
project with the purpose of expanding the availability of high-speed Internet access service
in all of the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald Mill, Otto, Norton, Mulberry,
Tessentee, and Scaly Mountain of Macon County, North Carolina which are unserved by
high-speed Internet access service for economic development in Macon County in an amount
set within Macon County’s sole and absolute discretion and which shall not to exceed
$580,000.00 of the total project cost.

Any grants awarded shall be on a technology neutral basis and shall be open only to
Proposers which are unaffiliated qualified private providers of high-speed Internet access
service.

Proposed Preparation Instructions

Proposers must closely review Section 6, Evaluation Criteria, of this RFP and be aware that
this is a “Best Value” solicitation where the successful Proposer will be selected based on
evaluation criteria contained in Section 6 plus all other elements contained in this section.

Proposers must be an unaffiliated qualified private provider of high-speed Internet access
service ensure and demonstrate the same as well as compliance with the administrative and
other requirements contained in all sections of this RFP.

Proposers must include a map in their proposal showing the proposed area of high-speed
Internet access service expansion in all of the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald
Mill, Otto, Norton, Mulberry, Tessentee, and Scaly Mountain of Macon County, North
Carolina which are unserved by high-speed Internet access service for economic
development in Macon County and shall include an estimate of the potential new customers
for each such area within each expansion area and show their approximate locations. The
Proposer shall commit to provide and make available to all such potential new customers
high-speed Internet access service in all of the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald
Mill, Otto, Norton, Mulberry, Tessentee, and Scaly Mountain of Macon County, North
Carolina which are unserved by high-speed Internet access service for economic
development in Macon County within 3 years from the date of any grant agreement entered
into with Macon County. The Proposer shall include the approximate number of homes that
will have high-speed Internet access service in each of the aforesaid areas of Macon County
as aresult of Proposer implementing its proposal to Macon County. The map must also show
the location and specifications of the lines and other project equipment to be constructed by
Proposer in accordance with the proposed project.

Proposer’s proposal must demonstrate and show with specificity the positive impacts on
economic development in Macon County associated with the proposed highspeed Internet



I:"
-]

B

a

].

e

>

=

[

L

I.

[

=
w

=
=

=N

(2]

access service expansion including but not limited to increasing the population, taxable
property, agricultural industries, employment, industrial output, and/or business prospects
of Macon County

Proposers must provide a description of the future growth capacity of their proposed high-
speed Internet access service solution and its ability to adapt to new broadband applications
and requirements.

Proposers must describe in detail the type and specifications of technology that is being
proposed including upload and download speeds and the service delivery method. Additional
information should also be provided on the technical capabilities of the high-speed Internet
access service system being proposed. The Proposer shall demonstrate and show how the
proposed project will meet the technological needs of current and future businesses, public
institutions, volunteer fire departments, community centers, educational institutions and local
residents within the all of the areas of Addington Mill, Riverside, McDonald Mill, Otto,
Norton, Mulberry, Tessentee, and Scaly Mountain of Macon County, North Carolina which
are unserved by high-speed Internet access service for economic development in Macon
County. As a reminder, proposals must meet the definition of “high-speed Internet access
service” as set forth 1,3 above.

Proposers must describe all services that will be provided as part of the highspeed Internet
access service network being installed, examples being internet services, phone, television,
home security, etc.

Proposers must provide a description of how customer service support will be provided and
the wait times associated with service requests and service outages.

Proposer must provide available information on pricing for individual services and business
services that will be available on the highspeed Internet access service network.

Proposer must provide a narrative that accurately describes the company's history and
experience in providing highspeed Internet access service.

Proposer must address the infrastructure that will be used to provide services and whether
that infrastructure is provider owned or if the infrastructure must be leased or procured from
another owner.

Proposer must include in their proposal an executive summary (not to exceed two pages) that
describes the project and funding that is being proposed.

Proposer must describe any enhanced features and network functionality that may add value
to the highspeed Internet access service network being proposed.

If desired, Proposer may describe any business or teaming relationships with other providers
that might positively affect the capability/services provided by the proposed highspeed
Internet access service network.

Proposer must describe their service level agreement. Macon County will require time
resolution of service outages. Provider shall provide a description of the process that will be

4



-8

o

=

e |

g

=]

=

&

&=

o

e
Y

S

h

f N
=t

iy

~1

o

=<3

used 1n the event of a service outage and whether customers will be notified when service
outages occur.

Proposer must provide a description of their process for prioritizing service calls and what
response times can be expected for making service repairs.

Proposer must provide the qualifications of the company's technical staff that will oversee
and ensure reliable operation of highspeed Internet access service network.

Proposer must provide a detailed estimate of the total dollar cost of the first one to three year
phase of the project for which grant funding by Macon County may occur.

Proposer must provide an estimate of the number of un-served customers who will be
provided highspeed Internet access service availability during the first one to three years of
the proposed project. Also Proposer shall comment on any estimates of additional un-served
customers after the first one to three year phase should also be included.

Proposer shall comment on how your company's selection might have a positive direct and/or
indirect impact on economic development in the unserved area of high-speed Internet access
service expansion proposed beyond the actual advantages resulting from the proposed
expansion high-speed Internet access service connectivity.

Proposer shall elaborate on the process that your company will use to determine where the
high-speed Internet access service expansion will be installed during the first one to years
and then the post four to twenty year period. If customer demand is the driver for either of
these periods, Proposer shall describe how that demand will be assessed.

Proposer must demonstrate to the satisfaction of Macon County why it believes that a Grant
from Macon County is necessary for the project proposed by Proposer to be constructed.

Proposer must demonstrate to the satisfaction of Macon County how large of a Grant is
needed from Macon County in order to construct the project proposed by the Proposer.

Proposer will provide services within the project area for at least 20 years.

Proposer shall demonstrate and show how the proposed project is designed for future
expansion into other parts of Macon County.

Proposer must specify the projected date by which its proposed project will be completed and
the date service delivery will commence over the proposed infrastructure.

Proposer understands and agrees that Macon County accepts no responsibility for any
expense incurred by the Proposer in the preparation and presentation of its proposal. Such
expenscs shall be borne exclusively by the proposer.

Proposer must demonstrate and show that it is a qualified private provider of high-speed
Internet access service in the State of North Carolina prior to the issuance of this RFP (grant
proposal) and at the time of responding.



4.
)
o

=
=)

£
ok

|
ro—.

n
(]

n
w

During the performance under any grant agreement, the proposer shall not assign, transfer,
convey, sublet, or otherwise dispose of any grant agreement or any or all of its rights, title
or interest therein, without the prior written consent of Macon County.

Proposer is hereby required to be in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter
64 of the North Carolina General Statutes concerning e-verification at the time of entering
any grant agreement and at all times during the performance of any grant agreement. All
subcontractors utilized by the Proposer are likewise required to comply with the requirements
of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes concerning e-verification
at the time of entering into a contract and at all times during the performance of the contract.
Proposer shall take necessary steps to include this provision in all contracts with
subcontractors who will perform any portion of the work covered by the contract.

If Macon County enters into grant agreement with Proposer, then Proposer shall purchase
and maintain in force, with an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of
North Carolina, at its own expense, insurance that will protect the proposer from claims
which may arise out of or result from the proposer execution of the work, whether such
execution be by itself, its employees, agents, subcontractors, or anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable. If any of such work is to be performed on Macon County owned or
leased premises, the proposer agrees to carry liability and workman’s compensation
insurance, satisfactory to Macon County, and to indemnify Macon County against all
liability, loss, and damage arising out of any injuries to persons or property caused by the
proposer, his subcontractors, employees or agents. The insurance coverage shall be such as
to fully protect Macon County and the general public from any and all claims for injury and
damage resulting by any actions on the part of the proposer or its forces enumerated above.

If Macon County enters into grant agreement with Proposer, then Proposer shall be an
Independent Contractor with respect to Macon County thereunder.

Administrative

Two copies of the proposal to be considered for acceptance shall be sealed and clearly labled
with the legal name of the Proposer to Macon County Finance Department, Attn.: Ms.
Lindsay Leopard, 5 West Main Street, Franklin, North Carolina 28734,

Questions concerning this RFP must be submitted in writing by email prior to 5:00 p.m.
, , 2020, to Lindsay Leopard at 'lleopard@maconnc.org'

Questions and answers will be posted on the Macon County Website under “Macon County
High-Speed Internet Access Service Expansion Project Q&A”.

All proposals must be signed with the Proposer name and by an officer or employee with
authority to bind the Proposer to the proposal given in response to the RFP ( legal title of the
signer should be indicated). The officer or employee signing the proposal on behalf of the
Proposer shall certify that he/she has carefully read the same and certify that the same is
truthful in all regards. Obligations assumed by such signature must be fulfilled or Proposer
shall be removed from Macon County's active file of providers.

6



tin

(=]

i

]

W
=)

n

[y

=2 N =Y

[y

All proposals should be submitted in a form that clearly addresses each of the requirements
listed. The price quoted must include all costs associated with the requirements listed,
including all installation costs and taxes, if applicable.

All prices or notations must be typed or written in ink. Proposals written with pencil will not
be accepted. Carefully review all proposals before submission, as not corrections will be
permitted after the proposals are opened.

The successful Proposer shall not be held responsible for delays in performance of the
contract caused by strikes, lockouts, labor disturbances, lack of or failure by transportation,
acts of the government or other causes similar to the foregoing which are beyond the control
of and are not the fault of the Proposer.

Default by Provider. Macon County shall hold the provider responsible for any damage that
may be sustained because of failure or neglect to comply with any term of condition listed
herein. Proposer shall agree to pay attorneys fees incurred by Macon County to enforce the
same or any agreement entered into with Proposer as a result of this RFP and the Proposer
response to the same.

If the winning Provider fails or neglects to furnish or deliver any of the materials, supplies
or services listed herein at the prices name and at the time and place herein stated, or
otherwise fails or neglects to comply with the terms of the proposal or any grant agreement
entered into with Macon County as a result of the same, Macon County may, upon 30 day
written notice to the Proposer, by certified mail, treat the Contract as materially breached by
the Provider and commence legal action against the Proposer for damages and attorneys fecs.

All proposals must three (3) customer reference (including name, address, and phone number
of the contact person} to help indicate the Proposer’s fitness as an acceptable source for this
project and possesses the ability to meet the RFP requirements.

Any Proposer may withdraw its proposal, either personally or by written request, at any time
prior to the entry of a grant agreement with Macon County.

[f Macon County will be required to sign a contract service agreement with the Proposer, a
copy of the same must be provided with Proposer’s response to this RFP.

In the event that Proposer 1s selected by Macon County, within its sole discretion, for a grant
as provided for by this RFP, then and in that event Proposer will be required to enter into a
grant agreement with Macon County which is satisfactory to Macon County and which is
consistent in all regards to this RFP and Proposer’s response to the same as a condition to
recetving any grant from Macon County.

Evaluation Criteria

The following factors listed below will be used in evaluating Proposer’s proposal responses:



A. The added availability/potential number of
unserved customers offered services during the first
three years.

B. Overall dollar investment share proposed by the
highspeed Internet access service provider.

C. Best technical performance proposed.

D. Highspeed Internet access service Provider's plan
for having a local presence in Macon County and
adding local jobs and/or facilities in Macon County
as part of the highspeed Internet access service
network.

E. Thehighspeed Internet access service provider’s
stability, experiences, and record of past
performance in delivering such services in North
Carolina and otherwise,

F. Positive impacts on economic development in
Macon County associated with the proposed
highspeed Internet access service expansion project
including but not limited to increasing the
population, taxable property, agricultural industries,
employment, industrial output, and/or business
prospects of Macon County

Macon County Government will consider entering a grant agreement for highspeed Internet
access service expansion within 60 working days after the Proposal deadline in this RFP if
a Macon County determines in its sole discretion that a suitable unaffiliated qualified private
provider of high-speed Internet access service is found. Macon County intends to award the
any grant agreement in accordance with applicable North Carolina laws.

Macon County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and discontinue the RFP
process without obligation or liability to any potential Provider and without obligation to
enter into any grant agreement.

This solicitation is a “Best Value” solicitation and is not based only on lowest cost/price.
Macon County reserves the right to select the proposal which in its sole judgment best meets
the unserved high-speed Internet access service needs of Macon County.

Macon County reserves the right to waive any irregularities or informalities in any proposal
or in the proposal process. Macon County reserves the right to unilaterally define
irregularitics or informalities should there be a need to do so.



(=)
~1

>
=

|

~X
.

=]
[—]

o]
ey

Macon County reserves the right to award more than one grant agreement to one or more
eligible Proposers. Proposer shall gain no franchise, exclusive franchise or other exclusive
rights from Macon County.

Macon County has total discretion in the determination of evaluation criteria weights and
how those weights are applied to the individual evaluation criteria contained in this RFP.

In the event of a dispute, the Proposer and Macon County agree that the venue and forum to
decide such dispute shall be in the General Court of Justice for the State of North Carolina
in Macon County.

Other possible proposals unrelated to the project referenced hereinabove.

Separate and apart from proposals regarding the Project referenced hereinabove, Proposer
may in addition make an additional proposal or additional proposals to expand the
availability of high-speed Internet access service in other unserved areas of Macon County
for economic development in Macon County, other than those areas of Macon County
specified in 2.1 above,

Miscellaneous.

Proposer is advised that it having partnership type arrangements which positively impact
economics and/or the high-speed Internet access service coverage area would be favorable
and those arrangements, if any, should be disclosed with some particularity as part of the
proposal.



AN ORDINANCE OF MACON COUNTY UPDATING, REPEALING AND REPLACING
CHAPTER 31. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, OF THE MACON COUNTY CODE
AND THE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR THE COUNTY OF

MACON BOTH OF WHICH WERE PASSED ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1977

WHEREAS, the Macon County Board of Commissioners adopted the Emergency Management
Ordinance for the County of Macon on September 12, 1977, and the same was codified in the Macon
County Code as “Chapter 31: Emergency Management”; and

WHEREAS, the Macon County Board of Commissioners wishes to update the same by repealing
said Emergency Management Ordinance for the County of Macon codified in the Macon County
Code as “Chapter 31: Emergency Management” and replacing the same as herein after set forth so
that Macon County will be in a position to better handle and better respond to emergencies; and

WHEREAS, the Macon County Board of Commissioners wishes to repeal said Emergency
Management Ordinance for the County of Macon codified in the Macon County Code as “Chapter
31: Emergency Management” and replace the same as hereinafter set forth below; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds the same to be in the public interest and to promote
the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to authority vested in it by North Carolina General
Statute § 153A-121, and Chapter 166A of the North Carolina General Statutes;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Macon County Board of Commissionets that:
Chapter 31: Emergency Management, of the Macon County Code, and the Emergency Management
Ordinance for the County of Macon as they were heretofore adopted on September 12, 1977, are

hereby repealed in their entirety, and the following which shall be known as and cited as "The
Emergency Management Ordinance of Macon County" is hereby substituted in lieu thereof:

“CHAPTER 31: EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Atrticle I. IN GENERAL
§ 31-1. Short title.
§ 31-2. Purpose statement.
§ 31-3. Definitions.
§§ 31-4 — 31-30. Reserved.

Article I. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
§ 31-31. Authority.




§ 31-32. Establishment; director.

§ 31-33. Intent.

§ 31-34. Organization and appointments.

§ 31-35. Duties and responsibilities of director.
§ 31-36. Emergency management plans.

§§ 31-37 — 31-65. Reserved.

Article IlI. DECLARATION OF STATE OF EMERGENCY
§ 31-66. Declaration.
§ 31-67. Area.
§ 31-68. When state of emergency take effect.
§ 31-69. Expiration of states of emergency.
§ 31-70. Prohibitions and restrictions authorized.
§ 31-71. When prohibitions and restrictions take effect.
§ 31-72. Authorized personnel.
§ 31-73. Expiration of prohibitions and restrictions.
§ 31-74. Supplemental authority.
§§ 31-75 —31-125. Reserved.

Article IV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISION S
§ 31-126. Superseding and amendatory proclamations.
§ 31-127. Termination of declaration,
§ 31-128. Absence or disability of chairperson.
§ 31-129. Governmental functions.
§ 31-130. No private liability.
§ 31-131.Violations.
§ 31-132. Civil liability of persons who willfully ignore a waming in an emergency.
§ 31-133. Effective Date of this Ordinance.



Article I. IN GENERAL

§ 31-1. Short title.
This chapter shall be known and may be cited and referred to as "The Emergency
Management Ordinance of Macon County."”

§ 31-2. Purpose statement.

The purposes of this chapter are to set forth the authority and responsibility of Macon County
in prevention of, preparation for, response to, and recovery from natural or manmade
emergencies or hostile military or paramilitary action and to do the following:

(D

(2)

(3)

*

Reduce vulnerability of people and property of this county to damage, injury, and
loss of life and property.

Prepare for prompt and efficient rescue, care, and treatment of threatened or affected
persons.

Coordinate with state and federal agencies for the orderly rehabilitation of persons
and restoration of property.

Provide for cooperation and coordination of activities relating to emergency
mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery among agencies and officials of this
county and with similar agencies and officials of other counties, with state and
federal governments, with interstate organizations, and with other private and
quasi-official organizations.

§ 31-3. Definitions.
The following definitions apply in this chapter:

Chair of the board of county commissioners means the chair of the board of county
commissioners or, in case of the chair's absence or disability, the person authorized to act
in the chair's stead. Unless the governing body of the county has specified who is to act
in lieu of the chair with respect to a particular power or duty set out in this chapter, this
term shall mean the person generally authorized to act in licu of the chair.

County-authorized emergency management personnel means persons duly registered,
identified and appointed by the director of the county emergency management agency
and assigned to participate in an emergency management activity.

Emergency means an occurrence or imminent threat of widespread or severe damage,
injury, ot loss of life or property resulting from any natural or manmade accidental,

military, paramilitary, weather-related, or riot-related cause.

Emergency area means the geographical area covered by a state of emergency.

3



Emergency management means those measures taken by the populace and governments
at federal, state, and local levels to minimize the adverse effect of any type emergency,
which includes the never-ending preparedness cycle of planning, prevention, mitigation,
warning, movement, shelter, emergency assistance, and recovery.

Emergency management agency means the local governmental agency charged with
coordination of all emergency management activitics for its jurisdiction.

Hazardous materials means any material defined as a hazardous substance under 29
Code of Federal Regulations, 1910.120(a)(3).

Political subdivision means counties, incorporated cities, and towns.

State of emergency means a finding and declaration that an emergency exists by the
board of commissioners or the chair of the board of commissioners, acting under the
authority of G.S. 166A-19.22.

§§ 31-4 — 31-30. Reserved.
ARTICLE II. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

§ 31-31. Authority.
Pursuant to G.S. [Ch.] 166A, the North Carolina Emergency Management Act, a county
emergency management agency 1s hereby established.

§ 31-32. Establishment; director.
The Macon County Emergency Services Director serves as the director of the emergency
management agency.

§ 31-33. Intent,
The intent of this chapter is to establish an agency that will ensure the complete and efficient
utilization of all of the county's resources to combat emergencies as defined in this chapter.

The emergency management agency will be the coordinating agency for all activity in
connection with emergency management. It will be the instrument through which the board
of commissioners may exercise its authority and discharge the responsibilities vested in it
during an emergency.

§ 31-34. Organization and appointments.

The emergency services director, as director, subject to the direction and guidance of the
board of commissioners, shall be responsible for the organization, administration and
operation of the emergency management agency, and shall designate and appeint deputy
directors to assist with the duties of the director in his absence or inability to act.



§ 31-35. Duties and responsibilities of director.
For the purposes of this chapter, the duties and responsibilities of the director shail include,
but not be limited to, the following:

+ Enter into contracts, obtain and distribute equipment, materials, and supplies for
emergency management purposes and to provide for the health and safety of persons and
property, including emergency assistance, consistent with this chapter;

* Direct and coordinate the development of emergency management plans and programs
in accordance with the policies and standards set by the North Carolina Division of
Emergency Management, consistent with federal and state laws and regulations;

* Be responsible for the planning, coordination and operation of the emergency
management activities in the county;

* Be responsible for cooperation and maintenance of liaison with state and federal
authorities and the authorities of other political subdivisions to ensure the most effective
operation of the emergency management plans;

* Coordinating the recruitment of voluntcer personnel and agencies to augment the
personnel and facilities of the county for emergency management purposes;

* Such services from persons outside of government may be accepted by local government
on a volunteer basis,

¢ Developing and coordinating plans for the immediate use of all facilities, equipment,
manpower and other resources of the county for the purpose of minimizing or preventing
damagc to persons and property; and protecting and restoring to usefulness governmental
services and public utilities necessary for the public health, safety, and welfare;

* Enter into agreements with owners or persons in control of buildings or other property
for the use of such buildings or other property for the emergency management purposes and
designating suitable buildings as public shelters;

* Through public informational programs, educating the populace as to actions necessary
and required for the protection of their persons and property in an emergency, either
impending or present,

* Conducting drills and exercises to ensure the efficient operation of the emergency
management forces and to familiarize residents with emergency management regulations,
procedures and operations;

+ Coordinating the activity of all other public and private agencies engaged in any
emergency management activities;



« When personnel, equipment, or supplies for an emergency function are not available
within the local government, the director is authorized to seek assistance from other
governments or from persons outside of government;

* The assignment of duties, when of a supervisory nature, shall also include the granting
of authority for the persons to carry out duties prior to, during, and after the occurrence of
an emergency; and

+ The invoicing of persons liable for hazardous materials release, and, in the event of
non-payment, the discretion to proceed with legal action to recover costs.

§ 31-36. Emergency management plans.

(a) Comprehensive emergency management plans shall be adopted by resolution of the
board of commissioners. In the preparation of these plans as they pertain to county
organization, it is intended that the services, equipment, facilities, and personnel of
all existing departments and agencies shall be utilized to the fullest extent. All
departments and agencies have the responsibility to perform the functions assigned
by these plans and be in a current state of readiness at all times. These plans shall
have the effect of law whenever an emergency, as defined in this chapter, has been
declared.

(b)  The director shall prescribe those positions within the emergency organizational
structure for which lines of succession are necessary. In each instance, the
responsible person will designate and keep on file with the director a current list of
three persons as successors to his position. The list will be in order of succession and
will designate persons best capable of carrying out all assigned duties and functions.

(c) Any individual assigned responsibility in the plans shall be responsible for carrying
out all assigned duties and functions. Duties include the organization and training of
assigned employees and, where needed, volunteers. Each individual shall formulate
the standing operating procedure to implement the plans.

(d) The director may submit recommended changes to the board of commissicners.
§§ 31-37 — 31-65. Reserved.
Article III. DECLARATION OF STATE OF EMERGENCY

§ 31-66. Declaration.

A state of emergency may be declared by the board of commissioners if it finds that an
emergency exists. Recognizing that circumstances and practical considerations may dictate
a more oppertune course, a state of emergency may be declared by the chairperson of the
board of commissioners when he or she finds that an emergency exists. The declaration shall
be in writing; shall activate any or all of the prohibitions and restrictions as authorized below

6



and any and all applicable local plans, mutual assistance compacts, and agreements; and shall
also authorize the furnishing of assistance thereunder. Reasonable steps shall be taken to give
notice to the public of the terms of the declaration. Reports of the substance of the
declaration shall be sent to the mass communications media which serve the affected area.

§ 31-67. Area.

The declaration of state of emergency shall include a definition of the area constituting
the emergency area. The emergency area of a state of emergency declared shall not include
any area within the corporate limits of any municipality, or within any area of the county over
which a municipality has jurisdiction to enact general police-power ordinances, unless the
municipality's governing body or mayor consents to or requests the state of emergency's
application.

§ 31-68. When state of emergency take effect.

Upon the declaration of a state of emergency by the board of commissioners or chair of the
board of county commissioners enacted under the authority of this chapter the declaration
of a state of emergency shall take effect immediately unless the ordinance or declaration sets
a later time.

§ 31-69. Expiration of states of emergency.

Unless otherwise stated in the declaration or the ordinance imposing prohibitions and
restrictions adopted pursuant to this chapter, a state of emergency declared pursuant to this
chapter shall expire when it is terminated by the official or governing body that declared it

§ 31-70. Prohibitions and restrictions authorized.

The declaration of state of emergency may or may not include any or all of the following
authorized prohibitions and restrictions. Further, the authority to impose by declaration such
prohibitions and restrictions under this section, and to impose those prohibitions and
restrictions at a particular time as appropriate, may be exercised by official or governing body
that declared it. The permitted prohibitions and restrictions include:

(1) Ofmovements of people in public places, including imposing a curfew; directing and
compelling the voluntary or mandatory evacuation of all or part of the population
from any stricken or threatened area within the governing body's jurisdiction;
prescribing routes, modes of transportation, and destinations in connection with
evacuation; and controlling ingress and egress of an emergency area, and the
movement of persons within the area;

(2) Of the operation of offices, business establishments, and other places to or from
which people may travel or at which they may congregate;

(3)  Upon the possession, transportation, sale, purchase, and consumption of alcoholic
beverages;



(4)  Upon the possession, transportation, sale, purchase, storage, and use of gasoline, and
dangerous weapons and substances, except that this subdivision does not authorize
prohibitions or restrictions on lawfully possessed firearms or ammunition. As used
in this subdivision, the term "dangerous weapons and substances" has the same
meaning as it does under G.S. 14-288.1. As used in this subdivision, the term
"firearm" has the same meaning as it does under G.S. 14-409.39(2); and

(5) Other activities or conditions the control of which may be reasonably necessary to
maintain order and protect lives or property during the state of emergency.

§ 31-71. When prohibitions and restrictions take effect.

All prohibitions and restrictions imposed by authority of this section shall take effect in the
emergency area immediately upon publication of the declaration unless the declaration sets
a later time. Publication shall include at least (i) posting of a signed copy of the declaration
conspicuously posted on the Web site of County, if the County has a Web site, and (ii)
submittal of notice and a signed copy of the declaration to the North Carolina Department
of Public Safety WebEOC critical incident management system. Publication may also consist
of reports of the substance of the prohibitions and restrictions in the mass communications
media serving the emergency area or other effective methods of disseminating the necessary
information quickly. As soon as practicable, however, appropriate distribution of the full text
of any declaration shall be made.

§ 31-72, Authorized personnel.

The declaration of a state of emergency may or may not exempt from all or any part of
prohibitions and restrictions the following persons or groups of persons while acting in the
line of and within the scope of their respective duties:

* Law ecnforcement officers, firefighters and other public employees, rescue squad
members, doctors, nurses, employees of hospitals and other medical facilities;

* On-duty military personnel, whether state or federal,

* On-duty employees of public utilities, public transportation companies, and newspaper,
magazine, radio broadcasting, and television broadcasting corporations operated for profit;
and

* Such other classes of persons as may be essential to the preservation of public order and
immediately necessary to serve the safety, health, and welfare needs of people within the
county.

§ 31-73. Expiration of prohibitions and restrictions.
The prohibitions and restrictions imposed pursuant to this section shall expire upon the
earliest occurrence of any of the following:



(1) The prohibition or restriction is terminated by the official or government body that
imposed the prohibition or restriction;

(2) The state of emergency is terminated.

§ 31-74. Supplemental authority.

This section is intended to supplement and confirm the powers conferred by G.S.
153A-121(a), G.S. 160A-174(a), and all other general and local laws authorizing counties
to enact ordinances for the protection of the public health and safety in times of riot or other
grave civil disturbance or emergency.

§§ 31-75 — 31-125. Reserved.
Article IV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 31-126. Superseding and amendatory proclamations.

The board of commissioners or chair may invoke the restrictions authorized by this chapter
in separate declarations and may amend any declaration by means of a superseding
declaration in accordance with the procedures set forth in [this] chapter pertaining to the
prohibitions and restrictions authorized.

§ 31-127. Termination of declaration.
A state of emergency declared under this chapter shall expire when terminated by the board
of commissioners or chair following the same procedures set forth in this chapter.

§ 31-128. Absence or disability of chairperson.

In the absence or disability of the chair, the vice-chair of the board of commissioners or such
other commissioner as may be designated by the board of commissioners shall have and
exercise all of the powers given the chair in this chapter,

§ 31-129. Governmental functions.

All functions and other activities relating to emergency management as provided for in this
chapter or elsewhere in the Macon County Code are hereby declared to be governmental
functions. Except in cases of willful misconduct, gross negligence, or bad faith, any
emergency management worker, firm, partnership, association, corporation, or agent
complying with or reasonably attempting to comply with this chapter or any order, rule, or
regulation promulgated pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or pursuant to any
ordinance relating to any emergency management measures enacted by the county, shall not
be liable for the death of or injury to persons, or for damage to real or personal property as
a result of any such activity.

§ 31-130. No private liability,
Any person, firm, or corporation, together with any successors in interest, if any, owning or

9



controlling real or personal property who, voluntarily or involuntarily, knowingly or
unknowingly, with or without compensation, grants a license or privilege or otherwise
permits or allows the designation or use of the whole or any part or parts of such real or
personal property for the purpose of activities or functions relating to emergency
management as provided for in this chapter or elsewhere in the Macon County Code shall
not be civilly liable for the death of or injury to any person or the loss of or damage to the
property of any persons where such death, injury, loss, or damage resulted from, through, or
because of the use of the real or personal property for any of the above purposes, provided
that the use of the property is subject to the order or control of or pursuant to a request of the
state government or Macon County.

§ 31-131.Violations,

Any person who violates any provision of an ordinance or a declaration enacted or declared
pursuant to this chapter shall be guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor in accordance with G.S.
14-288.20A.

§ 31-132. Civil liability of persons who willfully ignore a warning in an emergency.
In an emergency, a person who willfully ignores a warning regarding personal safety issued
by a federal, state, or local law enforcement agency, emergency management agency, or other
governmental agency responsible for emergency management under fthis] chapter is civilly
liable for the cost of a rescue effort to any governmental agency or nonprofit agency
cooperating with a governmental agency conducting a rescue on the endangered person's
behalf if all of the following are true:

(1) The person ignores the warning and (i) engages in an activity or course of action that
a reasonable person would not pursue or (ii) fails to take a course of action that a

reasonable person would pursue.

(2) As a result of ignoring the warning, the person places himself or herself or another
in danger.

(3) A governmental rescue effort is undertaken on the endangered person's behalf.

Section 31-133. Effective Date of this Ordinance.
The Ordinance shall become effective when adopted by the Macon County Board of
Commissioners.”

10



Upon motion made by Commissioner , seconded by Commissioner

, this Ordinance was passed, adopted and ordained by the unanimous vote of
the Macon County Board of Commissioners on this the 11™ day of August, 2020, at the
Regular meeting of the Macon County Board of Commissioners.

Jim Tate, Chairman, Macon County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk of the Board of Macon County Commissioners

( COUNTY SEAL)

11



(W -

. 1815 South Tryon $
QC}A | }\Tﬂ‘”‘f”f‘f)!l'i\wrlghi SuiteAOUt st 704.332.5668

DESIGN Charlotte, NC 28203 sganwdesign.com

May 18, 2020

Jack Morgan

MCMS Renovation Project Representative
Macon County

1834 Lakeside Drive

Franklin NC 28734

Re: Macon County Middle School Renovations — Request for Additional Services for IT scope changes
Macon County Middle School
SGA|NW Project: 19-170-01

Dear Jack:

We respectfully request additicnal design services fees relative to additional scope for IT related items as identified
in recent meetings. This request from the IT consultant contains no mark up from SGA|NW and is attached here
for your review and consideration. The attached document references and affirms that scope changes relative to
their site visit meeting on March 11, 2020 and additional scope items discussed in our meeting on May 5, 2020 are
covered by this request.

The total amount of this request is $16,600.00 (Sixteen Thousand Six Hundred Dollars).
We believe this request to be valid and appropriate.

Thank you in advance for your review and processing of this item.
Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Yours Truly:
SGA | NarmourWright Design, PA

Mark W. Sealy, AlA

Principal

cc: Doug Burns
Chris Coleman

enc.

Charleston | Charlotte | Greenville | Pawleys Island



NIV

May 18, 2020

Mr. Michael Rogers

Vice President

NV5

1928 South Boulevard, Suite 300
Charlotte, NC 28203

Re: Macon Middle School Renovation - Additional Services
Proposal for Structured Cabling and Building Security Consulting Services.

Dear Michael,

Thank you for inviting The Sextant Group to submit this add service proposal for the Macon Middle School Renovation
Project.

These additional services are based on a site visit meeting at Macon Middle School on March 11, 2020 and changes
discussed in a May 5, 2020 meeting between Tim Burrell (MCSD),Mark Sealy (SGA/NW) and Chris Coleman (SGA/NW).

ADDITIONAL SERVICE
1. Add design services for expansion of the paging system as requested by the owner.

2. Add design services for the expanding data outlets needed in the (2) computer labs.

3. Add design services for the new and revised data outlet locations being served by the (3) IT rooms that are to be
re-located.

4. Add (1) additional site visit during the Construction Administration phase of the project due to the increase of
scope.

Assumptions for Additional Service
1. The owner will provide a markup for the locations of the data outlets that will be served from the (3) IT rooms

that are to be located.

2. The owner will provide a markup for the locations of the additional cameras that are needed in the wings of the
building that is served from the (3) IT rooms. No site survey is included; alternatively, we can provide this service
as an additional service if desired.

Detailed demolition plans are not needed for the DD/CD submission.

The existing paging systems is an IP-based system capable of expansion as needed.

GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK ASSUMPTIONS
This scope of work is based on the following assumptions:

a) If required, infrastructure drawings will be electronically stamped by a Registered Communications Distribution
Designer (RCDD}); audiovisual drawings will be electronically stamped by a Certified Technology Specialist -
Design {CTS-D). Each designation represents the highest level of certification available in the respective field.

b) Design revisions based on changes initiated by the Owner or Design Team after submittal of 100% Construction
Documents may result in additional services and associated fees.

1928 SouTH BoULEVARD, SUITE 300 | CHARLOTTE, NC 28203 | www.NV5.com | OFfFicE 704.377.3921

COMSTRUCTION QUALITY ASSURANCE - INFRASTRUCTURE - ENERGY - PROGRAM MANAGEMENT - ENVIROMMENTAL - TECHNOLOGY



Macon Middle School Renovation Add Services
May 18, 2020
Page 2

OPTIONAL SERVICES
The following services are listed for consideration. We welcome the opportunity to discuss each element as appropriate.

+ Predictive Heat Map (to optimize wireless network design)
+ Voice/Data System Electronics / Distributed Antenna System (DAS) Design

+ Acoustics & Vibration Control Design/CS| Specifications for recommended Acoustical products

FEES AND EXPENSES
Discipline Fee
Additional Services $ 16,600
TOTAL: $ 16,600
PAYMENT TERMS

Payment terms are Net 30 days or per terms of the prime agreement. Typical expenses are included above.

If you wish to discuss this further, please contact Paul Bruckman at 919.275.6108 or
pbruckman@TheSextantGroup.com.

Thank you for your consideration, Michael. We look forward to a highly successful project together.

Sincerely, Accepted by:
THE SEXTANT GROUP, INC.

L 7 ol

ohn A. Cook
Vice President Print name Date

NIVIS

CONSTRUCTION QUALITY ASSURANCE - INFRASTRUCTURE - ENERGY - PROGRAM MANAGEMENT - ENVIROMMENTAL - TECHNOLOGY



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY - CONSENT AGENDA

MEETING DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020

Item 12A. A draft copy of the minutes of the May 26, 2020 continued
session and the June 2, 2020 continued session are included in this packet.
The draft minutes from the June 9, 2020 regular meeting will be provided to
you via email prior to the meeting. (Mike Decker)

Item 12B. Budget Amendments #34-47 are attached for your review and
approval. (Lori Carpenter)

Item 12C. A memo regarding tax releases in the amount of $1,558.98 for
the month of July is attached for your review and approval. (Teresa
McDowell)

Item 12D. A copy of the ad valorem tax collections report for the month of
July. No action is required on this item. (Teresa McDowell)




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CONTINUED SESSION
MAY 26, 2020
MINUTES

Chairman Tate reconvened the meeting at 6:00 p.m. as recessed from the May
12, 2020 regular meeting, and noted that the primary reason for the meeting
was to discuss the proposed Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget. Due to Gov. Roy
Cooper’s Executive Order limiting the number of people at a mass gathering to
10 due to COVID-19, physical participation at the meeting in the boardroom was
limited to that number. All five commissioners were physically present and
practiced social distancing. County Manager Derek Roland was also present, as
was Finance Director Lori Carpenter. Deputy Clerk Mike Decker watched the
meeting via live stream, and County Attorney Chester Jones participated via
telephone. A reduced number of members of the media were allowed to attend.

Chairman Tate asked Mr. Jones about additional items for the agenda, one being
a revised resolution for the Hospice House project, and the other being a revised
contract with the Reed Estate. Mr. Shiclds added an item, asking to request that
the Macon County Planning Board consider a review of the county’s
telecommunication tower ordinance. Mr. Roland also added an item regarding a
brief update on CARES Act funding. The board members agreed to the revised
agenda by consensus.

Prior to discussing the items on the agenda, Commissioner Beale offered
condolences regarding the death of Macon County Sheriff’s Deputy David Head
and his wife, Dawn, following a motorcycle accident in Clayton, GA on May 23rd,
Funeral services are scheduled for Thursday, May 25, at 11 a.m. in Scaly
Mountain, and Commissioner Beale said a funding page will be set up on the
sheriff’s webpage to help the family. Chairman Tate called Mr. Head “a good
friend of mine,” pointing out that the two played Little League baseball together,
and that for a period of time Mr. Head was part of his landscaping firm’s team.
Commissioner Beale said a 22-year-old was charged in the multi-vehicle
accident.

UPDATE ON TAX SOFTWARE CONTRACT: Tax Administrator Abby Braswell
presented a PowerPoint presentation regarding an update on a contract with Bi-
Tek to provide an integrated tax office software system for the county. A copy of

Minutes
05.26.20
Page 1 of 6



that presentation is attached (Attachment 1) and is hereby made a part of these
minutes. She explained that a major change in the contract had taken place,
with Bi-Tek agreeing to reimburse the county a pro-rated portion of the project
fees if the firm unilaterally terminates the agreement within 60 months of the
date it is signed. With a license fee of $309,656, she said that means the county
would receive a reimbursement of $5,160.33 for each month within that
timeframe that the firm asks to be released from the agreement. She then
covered the anticipated schedule for release, noting that the new system is
expected to be “live” by March 2021. Next up was the license and fee schedule,
with the county expected to pay a yearly fee of $51,171 as shown. That was
followed by a breakdown of the one-time project fee of $309,656, none of which
is due at the signing of the contract, Mrs. Braswell pointed out, but is due April
1, 2021. She also noted that 15 days of on-site training is expected and is
provided at a rate of $1,000 per day. She requested that the board approve the
“Master Agreement,” an unexecuted copy of which is attached (Attachment 2),
and authorize Mr. Roland to sign it. Mr. Jones interjected that there is also a
need for signatures on the software license and support agreement, which is
included as “Exhibit B” in the document. Following further discussion, and upon
a motion by Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by Commissioner Beale, the
board voted unanimously to approve the request as presented.

UPDATE ON MACON MIDDLE SCHOOL PROJECT: Commissioner Beale said
the school liaison committee members, he and Commissioner Shields, had met
and discussed the planned renovation of Macon Middle School. However, he
explained that proceeding with the project could “constrain” the board in the
future in terms of borrowing money. He spoke of an $11-million amount that
the county was to receive, and he said that if that money comes through, then
great, but if it doesn’t, “it will handcuff this board.” He further explained that
county officials have approximately 90 days in which to tell the architect on the
project how to proceed, and he and Commissioner Shields suggested that the
county use that time to allow for a better view on financing the project, and that
the committee’s recommendation is to postpone any progress on the project. Mr.
Roland spoke to the economic uncertainty of the project due to questions about
getting money from the state, and said a provision in the agreement with the
architectural firm allows for “suspension” of the project. Commissioner Beale
said that if the county moves forward without assurances of receiving the
additional funding, it would limit the county’s borrowing for the next five to seven
years. He then made a motion to suspend the project, authorize Mr. Roland to
contact the architect regarding the county’s plans, and to notify the Macon
County Board of Education of the county’s action. Commissioner Shields
seconded the motion, and all favored.

Minutes
05.26.20
Page 2 of 6



DISCUSSION REGARDING RECOMMENDED FISCAL YEAR 2020-21
BUDGET:

(A)Otto Volunteer Fire Department: Chairman Tate told the board that he
had lunch with Otto Volunteer Fire Department Chief Terry Rholetter two
to three weeks ago and discussed the department’s request for a tax
increase, and that he had shared with Mr. Rholetter that “it was a very,
very tough year” to consider approving that. He said that Mr. Rholetter
would make a presentation to the board at its June regular meeting.

(B)Macon County Schools: School Superintendent Dr. Chris Baldwin told the
board that we are “all dealing with COVID-19,” but that the system was
working on the assumption that the new school year would start on August
17th, Meanwhile, he said that Nantahala will have graduation on June 5th,
but both Franklin and Highlands have been postponed until at least
August 1st. Chairman Tate said that he has sat through many budget
discussions but has “never heard so little” from the schools, as this time
on the agenda had consumed less than five minutes. Commissioner Beale
pointed out that 26 percent of the county’s budget goes to fund education,
and he said Dr. Baldwin and the members of the school board “realize
we’re all in this mess together.”

(C)Macon County Solid Waste: Solid Waste Director Chris Stahl began by
talking about the proposed increase in the annual landfill fee, which would
rise $13 from $95 a year to $108. He explained that the market for
recyclables has gone away, and he is projecting a $300,000 loss to revenue
to the solid waste’s department’s enterprise fund because of that, adding
that the bulk of the money from the increased fee will go to replace that
loss. Mr. Stahl said that a $1 increase in the fee generates approximately
$27,000 in revenue. The discussion then turned to a proposal to take
some of the county’s part-time recycling convenience center attendants
and make them permanent part-time employees, which would allow them
to participate in the local government employees retirement system, would
allow them to accrue annual and sick leave, and would allow them to
participate in the county’s 401(k) retirement program. Mr. Stahl said that
plans for this have not been finalized, but the cost of making this switch
would be anywhere from $35,000 to $50,000. The 30 or so part-time
attendants targeted in the plan would not receive a salary adjustment,
while another 25 or so employees would no longer have jobs. Further
discussion centered on the department’s enterprise fund and plans to
renovate the recycling centers, with Mr. Stahl pointing out that the centers
were put in place in the late 1980s to early 1990s. Commissioner Higdon
expressed his displeasure with the proposed increase in the landfill fee,
which turned into a broader discussion about the impact of recycling.

Minutes
05.26.20
Page 3 of 6



Chairman Tate commented later that in terms of the new budget, every
single department across the county is “taking a hit this year,” and asked
Mr. Stahl why his department’s expenditures were increasing, which led
to more discussion.

(D)General budget discussion: Mr. Roland asked the board members if there
was any reason that they couldn’t support passage of the recommended
budget. Following brief discussion about the logistics of hearing from Otto
Volunteer Fire Department about its proposed tax increase, Commissioner
Beale said that he hates to see the money for the Community Funding Pool
cut in half, and asked that this item be reviewed mid-year as planned. MR.
Roland said the plan is to assess where revenues are in six months, but
for now, the planned reductions allow the county to continue operating
and provide services without “relying on our savings account.” He also
noted the plan to reorganize the Buildings and Grounds and Parks and
Recreation departments, essentially by moving some employees of the
former department to the latter department where the primary duty of
those employees already centers on maintenance of park facilities.
Chairman Tate stated that “the only thing I'm hearing” is concern
regarding the Otto VFD tax increase, and suggested having another
meeting before the public hearing and potential adoption of the budget at
the June 9 regular meeting.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS: Upon a motion by Commissioner Gillespie, seconded
by Commissioner Beale, the board voted unanimously to approve budget
amendments #279, 280, 281 and 282 as presented by Mrs. Carpenter. Copies
of those budget amendments are attached and are hereby made a part of these
minutes.

REVISED RESOLUTION REGARDING HOSPICE HOUSE: Mr. Jones explained
that when the board adopted a prior resolution regarding the Hospice House
project, the group that is looking to build and operate a hospice house in
Franklin was doing business under a different name. He said the new version
contains the correct name, and that nothing else has changed. Upon a motion
by Commissioner Beale, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted
unanimously to approve a Revised Resolution Concerning Rural Building Reuse
and Infrastructure Application to the North Carolina Department of Commerce
by Macon County for Project Titled ‘SECU Hospice House,” a copy of which is
attached (Attachment 3) and is hereby made a part of these minutes.

REVISED CONTRACT WITH THE REED ESTATE: Following an explanation by
Mr. Jones regarding the correction of a typographical error and the revision of
some dates, upon a motion by Commissioner Higdon, seconded by
Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted unanimously to approve an Agreement

Minutes
05.26.20
Page 4 of 6



for Purchase and Sale of Real Property with the Reed Estate, a copy of which
Chairman Tate signed and is attached (Attachment 4) and is hereby made a part
of these minutes.

DISCUSSION REGARDING TELECOMMUNICATION TOWER ORDINANCE:
Commissioner Shields expressed his concern that if COVID-19 comes back or
continues to be an issue, broadband access in the county is not what it needs to
be to support students learning from home as schools are closed. He said that
approximately 40 percent of students have access that is “fine,” but for 30
percent it is “not good” and the remaining 30 percent have “nothing.” He
suggested having the county planning board review the telecommunication tower
ordinance to determine if the county can make it easier for providers to place
towers in the county and increase broadband access and “stay out of this
academic slide.” Jack Morgan, the county’s director of planning, permitting and
development, said there is a desperate need for internet connectivity in Macon
County, and talked about a revised process for tower approvals that would be
quicker and benefit the provider. As it stands now, he said the process from
start to finish takes about four months to complete. Following further
discussion, no action was taken.

CARES ACT FUNDING: Mr. Roland explained that he needs to have a plan
available by June 1 on how to spend the $833,421 in CARES Act funding from
the state. He noted that he has asked all county departments to account for
expenses related to COVID-19, and that a portion of the funding is to go to the
towns of Franklin and Highlands. This turned into discussion of another
meeting, and the board agreed by consensus to recess this meeting until Tuesday
June 2, 2020 at 6 p.m. in the boardroom. Commissioner Beale asked that Public
Health Director Kathy McGaha update the board at that time regarding the latest
COVID-19 statistics for the county.

CLOSED SESSION: Upon a motion by Commissioner Beale, seconded by
Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted unanimously to go into closed session
at 8:02 p.m. for the purposes of discussing potential property acquisition under
NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) and to preserve the attorney/client privilege under NCGS
143-318.11(a)(3). At 8:31 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Higdon,
seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted to return to open session.
No action was taken.

RECESS: With no other business, and at 8:32, p.m., upon a motion by
Commissioner Shields, seconded by Commissioner Beale, the board voted
unanimously to recess the meeting until Tuesday, June 2, 2020 at 6 p.m. in the

Minutes
05.26.20
Page 5 of 6



commission boardroom on the third floor of the Macon County Courthouse,
located at 5 West Main Street in Franklin, NC.

Derek Roland Jim Tate

Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Chairman
Minutes
05.26.20

Page 6 of 6



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CONTINUED SESSION
JUNE 2, 2020
MINUTES

Chairman Tate reconvened the meeting at 6:00 p.m. as recessed from the May
26, 2020 continued session, and stated that the purpose of the meeting was to
discuss the proposed tax rate increase for Otto Volunteer Fire Department, to
continue discussion regarding the proposed Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget, and to
consider a lease agreement with the Cowee School Arts and Heritage Center.
Due to Gov. Roy Cooper’s Executive Order limiting the number of people at a
mass gathering to 10 due to COVID-19, physical participation at the meeting in
the boardroom was limited to that number. All five commissioners were
physically present and practiced social distancing. County Manager Derek
Roland was also present, as was Finance Director Lori Carpenter. Deputy Clerk
Mike Decker watched the meeting via live stream, and County Attorney Chester
Jones participated via telephone. A reduced number of members of the media
were allowed to attend.

OTTO VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TAX INCREASE REQUEST:
Chairman Tate recognized Terry Rohletter, the chief of the Otto Volunteer Fire
Department, who said the department is seeking a tax increase for the purpose
of building a new fire station. Mr. Rohletter explained that a new facility was
needed in order for the department to meet ISO insurance standards in the
future. He said the cost of the new 12,000-square-foot building is estimated at
$3.7-million. He also noted that a possible deal is in the works with Macon
County Emergency Services to use the current facility as an ambulance base for
the southern part of the county. The proposed tax increase would be 0.0384-
cent, and would bring the new rate to 0.1068-cents per $100 of property
valuation. Mr. Rohletter stated it was “a bad year” to be asking for a rate increase,
“but we have to provide a service to the community.” He told the board the
increase does have community support, saying that approximately 15 people
showed up at an “open house” to learn about the plan for the new station and
all were in support. He also said some 3,200 letters were mailed to property
owners, and out of 30 responses, only one was negative. He asked the board to
consider the increase, as the last change in the department’s tax rate was in
2016. Following further discussion, Mr. Rohletter introduced the architect on
the project, who presented the plans for the new structure, and told the board it
would be a year and a half before the building was in operation, if the

Minutes
06.02.20
Page 1 of 2



groundbreaking was today. Mr. Rohletter and several of the board members
then engaged in a lengthy discussion, but with Chairman Tate pointing out that
there is “just not support on the board for a tax increase this year.” Following
further discussion, no action was taken.

DISCUSSION REGARDING PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 BUDGET:
With regard to the county manager’s recommended budget for Fiscal Year 2020-
21 budget, there were no questions or concerns voiced by the board members,
and Commissioner Higdon expressed his thanks to Mr. Roland and Mrs.
Carpenter for their work. No action was taken.

CONSIDERATION OF LEASE AGREEMENT WITH COWEE SCHOOL ARTS
AND HERITAGE CENTER: Mr. Roland explained that there was a typographical
error in the previous version of the five-year lease agreement the board had
approved with the Cowee School Arts and Heritage Center, where a date of April
30, 2020 should have read April 30, 2025. At the request of Mr. Jones, Mr.
Roland asked the board to approve a “Resolution of the Macon County Board of
County Commissioners to Revise a Five Year Lease in Order to Correct a
Typographical Error in the Same.” Upon a motion by Commissioner Beale,
seconded by Commissioner, the board voted unanimously to approve the
resolution as presented, a copy of which is attached (Attachment 1) and is hereby
made a part of these minutes. Then, upon a motion by Commissioner Beale,
seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted unanimously to approve a
“Revised Lease to Cowee School Arts and Heritage Center from Macon County, a
copy of which is also attached (Attachment 2) and is hereby made a part of these
minutes.

UPDATE ON MACON MIDDLE SCHOOL PROJECT: Mr. Roland gave the board
a brief update on the Macon Middle School renovation project, noting that the
architectural firm is at a point with the plans where they can be “ready to hit the
street” for bids. He advised the board that it makes sense to allow them to finish
the bid package for the project and then the county can put it out for bids when
it is ready. No action was needed.

ADJOURN: With no other business, and at 6:44 p.m., upon a motion by
Commissioner Beale, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted
unanimously to adjourn.

Derek Roland Jim Tate

Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Chairman
Minutes
06.02.20

Page 2 of 2



MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT #

FROM: M. CHRIS STAHL

DEPARTMENT: SOLID WASTE
EXPLANATION: MOVING MONEY TO FY 20-21. PROJECTS NOT COMPLETED IN LAST

BUDGET YEAR.
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
60 4715 569506 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 232516.00

(MCGILL - $1,000)

(PANEL BUILT-350,195.74)

(APPALACHIAN-$92,720.00)

(APPALACHIAN - $88,600.00)

60 3472 447203 FUND BALANCE 232516.00
APPROPRIATED

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT Hﬁfu’ﬁ//- hacs %/1// /J N

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER ﬁﬂ A ﬁ‘%-@fzfcﬁ v

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS £ /1t/ 2020 neetins

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT July 16, 2020
AMENDMENT # 55

FROM: FINANCE

DEPARTMENT: DSS
EXPLANATION: Covid Social Work Funds
DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-3560-4396-01 CARES ACT-APS/CPS ESS $18,206
WORKER
11-5360-5500-02 SW PT SALARY $16,912
11-5360-5502-01 SW MEDICARE/FICA $1,294
—7
/ / /’-s o |
) /4

/ / / -
(s H T
REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD

I b
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER J A/(/ab/\ﬁff

\
Y R

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS % /_/ ) [Po2o mo,.ca’x‘“g/

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT July 17, 2020
AMENDMENT # 3é
FROM: FINANCE
DEPARTMENT: DSS
EXPLANATION: Carnry Forward of donations
DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-3840-4179-00 Fund Balance $1,641
11-5314-5675-19 Foster Care - General 31,119
11-5314-5750-55 $ 522

Donations/Concessions

]
/[

/ e

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEA]g

77
(/I

7Y
/o

b

II/

MMﬁ

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFF[CER( /&

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

5/, //_/9_020 m,u/@»og/

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT Date: 7/17/2020
AMENDMENT # 27

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH
Carry forward money received as prepayment for Rabies vaccine in FY20 that will be received and administered in
FY21.

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
113840-417900 Fund Balance Appropriated $ 1,545.00
115145-565002 Disease Control/Foreign Travel/Other Vaccines $ 1,545.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD ﬁ% Wo—\

’ .
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE QOFFICER /% ﬂ/(ﬂr[, dé{/t?f ,,\/ZG

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Z\/ // / D0 Ind it QX ,

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY B%)GET AMENDMENT Date: 7/17/2020
AMENDMENT #_

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH
EXPLANATION: Need to roll donations into FY21 (for FY20: 113850-445801 =$1115 & 114380-575055 = $135)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
113840-417900 Fund Balance Appropriated $ 1,250.00
114380-575055 Animal Control Donations $ 1,250.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEADM e

IR N =
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER B\ (}/Ohk ('("'Lff “ '

L/

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

o - P A
ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS (5/ //7/-3“0 A ey

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT <

AMENDMENT # 1 {,\L 2\
DEPARTMENT: HEALTH

EXPLANATION: Need to carry forward unexpended Contributions money to current FY 21,
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
113840-417900 Fund Balance Appropriated 7188
115128-555126 Mountainwise Services - Local 7188

Aid AL, -
REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD (R Y/ 2 AN %fmm% @m‘é

P
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER [&g /ﬂ/(/%@%ﬁ?

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 3/ {{ / A0 e

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT # ¢

A

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH

EXPLANATION: Need to decrease Appalachian Mtn Comm. Hlth grant for current FY 21
Additional expenses for June that was not estimated.
Decrease expenses and revenues from $35,205 to $29,966.
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
115128-555124 RCORPF Grant 5239
113511-426010 RCORP Grant 5239

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD 422‘ /”(;7%/4 & %{NM\B @m’é

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER & % \é/wl’( Oﬂp_&/ﬁ/’é@

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Sl [20 l/lf‘Luiah;/

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT \

AMENDMENT # F"" /L

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH

EXPL.ANATION: Need to carry forward unexpended grant money to current FY 21
Increase expenditures and revenues from $366,743 to $368,896.

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
115128-5655127 GusNIP Grant 2,153.00
113511-426012 GusNIP Grant 2,153.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD //ZZ?ZZ”W%( e %WD‘(\ @m\i
7 £ S

in . =
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER \[‘%/M”’( (ﬂﬁ[}/ =

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ﬁ/ /f /gz 0 neely n;)

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT |
AMENDMENT #_ & gj\{ T

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH
EXPLANATION; Need to carry forward unexpended grant money to current FY 21
Increase expenditures and revenues from $429,621 to $461,255.

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
115128-555122 Appalachian Region Commission 31,634.00
113511-428009 Appalachian Region Commission 31,634.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD ﬁéﬂ zvé ; % SJ’CNAD Qlw(‘{i

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE QFFICER MM (J/{

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 5‘} o 20 ywle A s
()

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT #

[}
DEPARTMENT Health
EXPLANATION Carry forward funds from CARES act provider relief funds.
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
115121 556011 |OPERATING SUPPLIES 5,852.00
5 852.00

113840] 417900{FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD A/ atb /e ke

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER ~ L=Vt £ U O\t dryre A
i U

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED & ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

Slit{zo YMeeGna ;}/

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT # L)
DEPARTMENT CARES ACT
EXPLANATION

Adjust carry forward of funds received from State Coronavirus Relief Fund {through CARES Act}.

{to account for expenditures claimed March 1 - June 30, 2020)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
113840 417500|FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED 696,715
119400 550001|SALARY 309,000
119400f 550201{MEDICARE/FICA 23,639
119400| 550203|HOSPITALIZATION -
119400f 550206]LIFE INSURANCE -
119400]  S50207|RETIREMENT-GENERAL 31,611
119400F 550701 (COUNTY 401K 6,180
119400 555106|CONTRACTED SERVICES -
112400| 556000({SUPPLIES 109,463
112400]  559700|NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT -
119400| 561103|EMERGENCY PAID SICK LEAVE 17,156
119400| 561104 |EMERGENCY FMLA EXPANSION ACT 20,192
119400f 569502 |CAPITAL EQUIPMENT -
119400}  569504|OTHER CAPITAL STRUCTURES -
118400 569701|TOWN OF FRANKLIN 75,296
119400] 569702 [TOWN OF HIGHLANDS 104,178

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

L) .
{7{ dam_{ }t’,va?’-‘IU

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED & ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

E/tt 20 €25 ¢
[}

CLERK




MACON CQUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT #

DEPARTMENT CARES ACT

EXPLANATION Approgriate additional funds received from State Coronavirus Relief Fund {through CARES Act).

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
113850 445715|CARES ACT 695,930
115400 550001 [SALARY 372,764
119400 550201 |MEDICARE/FICA -
119400 550203 |HOSPITALIZATION -
119400 550206 LIFE INSURANCE -
119400 550207 |RETIREMENT-GENERAL -
119400 S50701{COUNTY 401K -
119449 555106|CONTRACTED SERVICES -
119400 556000|5UPPLIES 60,828
119400 559700{NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT -
119400 561103 |EMERGENCY PAID SICK LEAVE -
119400 561104 [EMERGENCY FMLA EXPANSION ACT -
119400 569502 |CAPITAL EQUIPMENT -
119400 569504 |OTHER CAPITAL STRUCTURES -
119400 569701 |TOWN OF FRANKLIN 131,169
119400 569702 |TOWN OF HIGHLANDS 131,169

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD Py

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER 7 A0 L WL g e
APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER v

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED & ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

5/ fan mectn e

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT # l_.,,[ (o

FROM: Robert L Holland

DEPARTMENT: Sheriff

EXPLANATION: Insurance Settlement

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-3839-4850-00 Insurance Settlement $3,048.00
11-4310-5565-03 Vehicle Repairs $3,048.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD

TN / ,
(gt St

/
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER fé{éf/w/m/é’b—é(ﬁé&;)

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

75/ (20 rrect n\B/

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT #___ £/ 7/

FROM: FINANCE

DEPARTMENT: TRANSIT

EXPLANATION: Carry Forward - FY20

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-4935-5611-02 CARES ACT $ 15,158.00
11-3570-4457-15 CARES ACT $ 15,158.00

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD: Kim Angel

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER: {’/‘/\t/ 246 Ca ,cbf;.ﬁ,

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER;

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:____ & //// 20 MLe ‘BLZ/

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MUNIS DATED:

CLERK:




Macon County Tax Office
5 West Main Street
Franklin, NC 28734

Phone: (828) 349-2149
Fax: (828) 349-2564
tmedowell@maconne.org

TO: MACON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FROM: Macon County Tax Office
Teresa McDowell, Tax Collections Supervisor
DATE: August 3, 2020
RE: Releases

Attached please find the report of releases for real estate that require your approval in order to
continue with the process of releasing these amounts from the tax accounts. Please feel free to contact
me if you should have any questions regarding these releases. The report of the releases formatted in
alphabetical order is attached.

AMOUNT OF RELEASES FOR July, 2020: $1,558.98



660
LTT
801
960

98eluadiad
uonas||o)

BEYZ9LE0SE
T'E69188T
6€TTY98E
£0°£1888Z8¢

Qluejeg
Buipueising

8€PZ9LE0SE
TY'€69¥88¢
6°ETTP98E
L0°LT888T8T

aouejeg
Suipuelsing

v veeohE-
SETTVE-
670902
8'6SLELT-

syuawdied 19N

veveeeve-
SETTPE-
76°090Z¥%-
8'6SLELT-

sluawaAed 1N

o'y
0
0
o'y

10/1Q 351N

9’y
0
0
9y

D/10 39N

6577Z8
0
0
65°7¢8

spunjay
S

65°7Z8
0
0
65°¢¢8

spunjay
s597

6Z'T9L0S¢E-
STETTVE-
¥6°030¢2t-
$8'98SkLT-

sluawdeyd
$5049

62°19£05¢€-
SETTIVE-
¥6°0902-
S8'98ShLT-

sjuawdeqd
$S019

€9'85548¢€S¢€
T16'908816C
P8 PLT906E
£8'9457958T

Aaan [py
sjenb3y

C9'85S/8¢ESE
16°908816¢
¥8'VLT906€E
£8°9£57958C

Ana fpy
sjenb3y

£€9°€9¢T-
60°T-
8T¥IT-
92'860T1-

SHO-21UM
$s37

€9°89¢T-
60°T-
8T'v9T-
9¢°860T-

SHO-33UM
ssal

"6T0T/TE/L 40 sB 53Xl GTOT U0 %95 ZT 03 patedwod se
0Z0Z/T€/L 30 Se Saxe1 PAL3Jap pue SALAA0ISIP ‘sanjeuad Sunsi| ale] ‘SaXe] [BIAUIY OZOZ UO P3123(|02 %9670 S! 2184 UOKIB||0I Y|

(=R RN =R ]

saseajay
ssa

cooo

saseajy
5597

ST'TT8BBESE O
808816¢C 0
{T'6EE906E O
€1°9£9€958Z 0

Psppy
AnaT

STTTBYBESE
8088167
ZT'6EE906E
€T'S£9€958¢C

o 0o oo

pPappY
Anaq

SuiuuiBag

Buiuuidag

s|e1o)

334 4350 [|ypue]
S1913S1Q 314
Xe] |elauag

31eq 03 283,

s|elol

394 235N [1ypue]
121151 3414
Xe] |eJaua

91e(Q 01 YIUO]

oz-Inr

140d3¥ SNOILD3TI0D XV.L W3IHOTVA QY

ATHLNOW ALNNOD NODVIA



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY - CLOSED SESSION

MEETING DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020

14. The need for a closed session is warranted under NCGS
143.318.11(a)(3) in order to preserve the attorney/client privilege.




